
 
 

SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, February 22, 2023 
2:00 p.m. - 4:00 p.m. 

MS Teams Online 

1 / 1 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order  ................................................................................................... Fergal Callaghan 2:00 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Approval of Minutes, January 25, 2023 

4. Chair's Report .............................................................................................................................  2:05 

4.1. Technical Management and Services Program Review Timeline 

4.2. Economics Program Review Timeline 

5. New Business  .............................................................................................................................   

5.1. Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                             Natasha Campbell, 
Andhra Goundrey ................................................................................................................  2:10 

5.2. Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report               Kim Bagshaw, 
Sharmen Lee .......................................................................................................................  2:30 

5.3. Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report ...................... Fergal Callaghan 2:50 

6. Items for Discussion 

7. Manager’s Report for OPA ........................................................................... Melike Kinik-Dicleli 3:10 

8. Adjournment 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Minutes of Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, January 25, 2022 
2:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

MS Teams Online 

1 / 3 

Voting Member Quorum: 10  

Aimee Begalka 
Courtney Verhage 
Craig Wright 
David Burns 
Fergal Callaghan, Vice-Chair 
Hao Ma 
Jennifer Gao 
 

Julia Denker 
Lindsay Norris 
Lori McElroy 
Marti Alger 
Melissa Swanink 
Nishan Perera 
Tomasz Gradowski 

 

Non-voting 

Amy Jeon, Chair 
Laura McDonald 
Melike Kinik-Dicleli 
Stephanie Howes 

Regrets  Senate Office Guests  

Alan Davis 
Cherylynn Bassani 
Jeff Dyck 
Rajmale Kaur 

Sonia Banwait 
 

Heather Harrison 
Jack Hayes 
Mandeep Pannu 
Melinda Bige 

 
 
1. Call to Order and Territorial Acknowledgement 

The Chair, Amy Jeon, called the meeting to order at 2:01 p.m.  

2. Approval of Agenda 

Melissa Swanink moved the agenda be confirmed as circulated.  

The motion carried. 

3. Approval of Minutes, November 23, 2022 

Laura McDonald noted she is listed as a voting member in the attendance, however she is a non-
voting member. The correction was made. 

Nishan Perera moved the minutes be accepted as amended.  

The motion carried. 

4. Chair’s Report 

The Chair welcomed new member Stephanie Howes, Vice-President, Students.  



 

2 / 3 

The Chair provided her report and highlighted that kick-off meetings for the Fine Arts and 
Journalism programs took place in December 2022 and the Creative Writing program external 
review site visitation took place in January 2023.   

4.1. Asian Studies Program Review Timeline 

The Chair shared the Asian Studies program’s timeline and informed that they are projected to 
submit the self-study report in September 2023.  

4.2. Journalism Program Review Timeline 

The Chair shared the Journalism program’s timeline and informed that they are projected to 
submit the self-study report in October 2023.  

5. New Business  

5.1. Computer Science and Information Technology First Annual Follow-Up Report 

The Chair summarized the reviewer’s comments and informed that some revisions were made to 
the suggested edits. Mandeep Pannu and Heather Harrison were present to answer questions. 
 
The committee had questions around proposed timelines, inadequate completion dates and 
missing rationales throughout the report. After discussion, the committee suggested the 
proponents review the report again with their department and add context for items that have not 
yet started. It was recommended that the proponents work with the Provost office to get 
assistance with planning acceptable timelines.  

The committee agreed to provide the proponents an extension of two months to revise their 
document and bring it back to committee for review.  

Melissa Swanink moved THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review accept 
the Computer Science and Information Technology First Annual Follow-Up Report as 
attached. 
 
Amy Jeon moved to postpone the motion until the April meeting. 

The motion is postponed. 

5.2. History First Annual Follow-Up Report 

The Chair summarized the reviewer’s comments and informed that all revisions were made to the 
suggested edits. Jack Hayes and Melinda Bige were present to answer questions. 

Lori McElroy suggested the committee establish guidelines on how to set proposed timelines to 
ensure the progress being made is accurately captured and the dates provided do not draw 
confusion. David Burns suggested to revise the steps rather than slotting them as ‘on-going’ or 
with long term completion dates.  

Action Items:  

Page 6 – remove 05/26 date 



 

3 / 3 

Page 9 – revise 2027 date to appropriate completed date and state as ‘completed’ 

Fergal Callaghan moved THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review accept 
the History First Annual Follow-Up Report as attached. 

The motion carried. 

Lori McElroy moved THAT the program submits another annual follow-up report next year. 

The motion carried. 

 

5.3. Political Science External Review Report 

The Chair summarized reviewer’s comments and welcomed questions from the committee.  

Aimee Begalka moved THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review accept the 
Political Science External Review Report as attached. 

The motion carried. 

6. Items for Discussion 

6.1. Horticulture Technology Program Review 

Lori McElroy explained that the diplomas and citations in the Horticulture Technology program 
were not included in the approved Quality Assurance Plan in April 2021 when they should have 
been. As of Fall 2022, program reviews have begun on the Horticulture Technology diplomas and 
citations. As such, the annual follow-up report for the degree programs is suspended and the 
report will not be implemented this year to ensure changes do not impact the diplomas and 
citations.  

Nishan Perera stated that offering workshops for the curriculum mapping process has worked 
well and hopes to continue it in the future.  

7. Manager’s Report for the Office of Accountability and Planning 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager, Quality Assurance presented her report.  

8. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 2:59 p.m. 

 

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 4.1 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Fergal Callaghan 

 1 / 2 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: TECHNICAL MANAGEMENT AND SERVICES PROGRAM 
REVIEW TIMELINE 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Information 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: N/A 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Context and Background  

To ensure that program reviews are completed in a timely manner and that program review reports are 
based on relevant data, program reviews at KPU follow a timeline. All program reviews should be 
completed within 16 months from the beginning of the Curriculum Review to the submission of the 
Quality Assurance Plan. Starting September 2020, the timelines for new program reviews are presented 
to the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review. Attached is the program review timeline for the 
Technical Management and Services Program. 
  
Consultations 

Technical Management and Services Program Review Team 

Attachments 

Technical Management and Services Program Review Timeline_Final
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 



 

2 / 2 

Date submitted 

February 1, 2023 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Post Baccalaureate Diploma in Technical 
Management and Services 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 6, 2022                      1 
 

Finalized at the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review (SSCPR) on DAY/MONTH/YEAR. 
 
Program Review Team (in alphabetical order):  

• Serena Mawani (primary author) 
• Phaedra Burke 
• Rushi Mah’d Alsaleh 
• Alban Gandais 

 
The Program Review Team will be responsible for the following: 

• Seeking support from Teaching and Learning Commons (TLC) to conduct the curriculum review, 
if needed. 

• Collaborating with OPA to provide the following: 
o Program-level outcomes; 
o Names and contact information of discipline/sector representatives to be included in 

discipline/sector surveys; 
o Names and contact information of faculty members to be included in faculty surveys; 
o Feedback on surveys which OPA will design and administer. 

• Writing reports using the templates provided and submit them according to the timelines 
endorsed by the SSCPR as presented below. Self-Study Report is written by a faculty member 
who takes the role of Primary Author, in consultation with faculty members of the program. 

• Meeting with the Dean/Associate Dean regularly so they can be apprised of the direction of the 
review. 

• Providing the Dean/Associate Dean draft reports so the Dean/Associate Dean can provide 
feedback and responses as required.  

• Attending SSCPR meetings to present reports (only one member of the team is required to 
attend though all are certainly welcome). 
 

The Program Review Timeline consists of 8 phases: 
1. Getting Started 
2. Self-Study: Curriculum Review and Writing Chapters 1 & 2 
3. Self-Study: Data Collection 
4. Self-Study: Writing Chapters 3 to 6 
5. Self-Study: Review/Revisions  
6. External Review 
7. Quality Assurance Plan Development (needs to be signed off by the Dean and Provost) 
8. Annual Follow-Up Reporting 

 
It should take approximately 16 months from beginning of Self-Study to the submission of the Quality 
Assurance Plan. The first Annual Follow-Up Report should be submitted one year after the approval of 
the Quality Assurance Plan. The Annual Follow-Up Reporting continues until a program can 
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the SSCPR, substantial completion of the Quality Assurance Plan. 

 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Post Baccalaureate Diploma in Technical 
Management and Services 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 6, 2022                      2 
 

The chart below provides a visual representation of the proposed timeline including elapsed time and 
report submissions.  

Phases  
Months 

Sep 
22 

Nov 
22  

Dec 
22  

Jan 
23  

Feb 
23  

Mar 
23  

Apr 
23  

May 
23  

June
23 

July 
23 

Aug 
23 

Sep 
23 

Oct 
23 

Nov 
23 

Dec 
23 

Jan 
24 

Feb 
24 

Mar 
24 

1. Getting Started         
 

         

Self-Study Phases:         
 

         

2. Self-Study: Curriculum Review and 
Writing Chapters 1 & 2 

        
 

         

3. Self-Study: Data Collection         
 

         

4. Self-Study: Writing Chapters 3 to 6                   

5. Self-Study Review/Revisions         
 

         

6. External Review         
 

         

7. Quality Assurance Plan 
development  

        
 

         
One Year Later 

8. First Annual Follow-Up Report   
 Report submission months 
Note: External Review Report is submitted by the External Review Team, not by the Program Review Team.  
 

The tasks involved in each phase of the program review process are described on the following pages.  

 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Post Baccalaureate Diploma in Technical 
Management and Services 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 6, 2022                      3 
 

PHASE 1 Month/Year Tasks 
GETTING STARTED August 2022 • Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Chair information 

about program review before the initial planning meeting. 
September 2, 
2022 

• Manager, Quality Assurance and Chair of SSCPR meet with 
Program Review Team to outline the purpose and process for 
program review and expectations for reports and timing. 

October 7, 
2022 

• Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Review Team the 
guides and reporting templates. 

PHASE 2 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
CURRICULUM 
REVIEW & 
WRITING 
CHAPTERS 1 & 2 

November 
2022-January 
2023 

• Program Review Team conducts the curriculum review, which 
becomes part of the self-study report. 

• Support is available from Educational Consultants at the Teaching 
and Learning Commons. The Manager, Quality Assurance will 
provide an introduction.  

• Primary Author completes the first two chapters of the Self-Study 
Report, although other members of the program review team may 
be involved in the writing.   

PHASE 3 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
DATA COLLECTION 

January 2023 • Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Review Team the 
administrative data report needed for the Self-Study Report. 

• Program Review Team submits additional administrative data 
requests, if needed, to the Manager, Quality Assurance. 

January-
February 
2023 

• Program Review Team provides program-level learning outcomes 
for Quality Assurance Team to include in surveys.  

• Program Review Team provides additional type of information, if 
any, they want to collect through surveys. 

• Quality Assurance Team customizes surveys for students, alumni, 
faculty, discipline/sector and seeks feedback from Program Review 
Team. 

• Program Review Team submits names and contact information of 
discipline/sector representatives and faculty members to be 
surveyed. 

March 2023 • Quality Assurance Team launches surveys for students, alumni, 
faculty and discipline/sector representatives. 

March 2023 • Quality Assurance Team provides survey data reports. 
PHASE 4 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
WRITING 
CHAPTERS 3 TO 6  

February – 
June 2023 

• Primary Author writes chapters 3-6 of the Self-Study Report in 
consultation with other faculty members of the program.  

1st week of 
July 

• Primary Author sends the completed Self-Study Report to Dean.  

August 15, 
2023 

• Primary Author completes revisions, if any, requested by the Dean 
and submits the report to SSCPR (5 weeks before the September 
meeting date). 

PHASE 5 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY 
REVIEW/REVISIONS 

September 
2023 
 

• SSCPR members assigned to review Self-Study Report review the 
report and provide written feedback on necessary revisions. 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Post Baccalaureate Diploma in Technical 
Management and Services 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 6, 2022                      4 
 

September 
2023 
 

• Primary Author completes revisions to the Self-Study Report and 
submits it to SSCPR (one week before the meeting). 

September 
2023 

• SSCPR reviews Self-Study Report at the September 2023 meeting. 

PHASE 6 Month/Year Tasks 
EXTERNAL REVIEW 
SITE VISIT 

August 2023 • Program Review Team sends names of potential external 
reviewers. 

• SSCPR selects external reviewers.  
September 
2023 

• Program Review Team, with the help of Manager, Quality 
Assurance, begins planning external review. 

• Dean invites two external reviewers. 
• SSCPR Chair appoints KPU faculty member to the panel. 

October 2023 • External review site visit, with participation of Program faculty, 
students, alumni and PAC members, takes place. 

EXTERNAL REVIEW 
REPORT  

November 
2023 

• External reviewers submit External Review Report. 

November 
2023 

• SSCPR reviews External Review Report at the November 2023 
meeting. 

• Approved External Review Report is sent to Program Review 
Team and Dean. 

PHASE 7 Month/Year Tasks 
QUALITY 
ASSURANCE 
PLAN 
DEVELOPMENT 

December 
2023 

• Program Review Team beings writing Quality Assurance Plan in 
consultation with the Dean. 

March 2024 • Program Review Team and Dean meets with the Provost to discuss 
the Quality Assurance Plan. 

March 2024 • Program Review Team submits Quality Assurance Plan to the 
SSCPR.  

March 2024 • SSCPR reviews Quality Assurance Plan at the March 2024 meeting. 
• Approved Quality Assurance Plan along with the Annual Follow-Up 

template and guide are sent to the Program Review Team. 
PHASE 8  Month/Year Tasks 
ANNUAL  
FOLLOW-UP 
REPORTING 

March 2025 • Program Review Team submits first Annual Follow-Up Report. 
• SSCPR reviews Annual Follow-Up Report and decides whether the 

annual follow-up reporting should continue the following year. 

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 4.2 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Fergal Callaghan 

 1 / 1 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: ECONOMICS PROGRAM REVIEW TIMELINE 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Information 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: N/A 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Context and Background  

To ensure that program reviews are completed in a timely manner and that program review reports are 
based on relevant data, program reviews at KPU follow a timeline. All program reviews should be 
completed within 16 months from the beginning of the Curriculum Review to the submission of the 
Quality Assurance Plan. Starting September 2020, the timelines for new program reviews are presented 
to the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review. Attached is the program review timeline for the 
Economics Program. 
  
Consultations 

Economics Program Review Team 

Attachments 

Economics Program Review Timeline_Final
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 

Date submitted 

February 1, 2023 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Minor in Economics/Associate of Arts 
Degree in Economics 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 11, 2022                      1 
 

Finalized at the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review (SSCPR) on DAY/MONTH/YEAR. 
 
Program Review Team (in alphabetical order):  

• Vujovic, Sinisa 
• McAuley-Bax, Shauna 
• Aderemi, Taiwo 
• Muhammad, Kabeer 

 
The Program Review Team will be responsible for the following: 

• Seeking support from Teaching and Learning Commons (TLC) to conduct the curriculum review, 
if needed. 

• Collaborating with OPA to provide the following: 
o Program-level outcomes; 
o Names and contact information of discipline/sector representatives to be included in 

discipline/sector surveys; 
o Names and contact information of faculty members to be included in faculty surveys; 
o Feedback on surveys which OPA will design and administer. 

• Writing reports using the templates provided and submit them according to the timelines 
endorsed by the SSCPR as presented below. Self-Study Report is written by a faculty member 
who takes the role of Primary Author, in consultation with faculty members of the program. 

• Meeting with the Dean/Associate Dean regularly so they can be apprised of the direction of the 
review. 

• Providing the Dean/Associate Dean draft reports so the Dean/Associate Dean can provide 
feedback and responses as required.  

• Attending SSCPR meetings to present reports (only one member of the team is required to 
attend though all are certainly welcome). 
 

The Program Review Timeline consists of 8 phases: 
1. Getting Started 
2. Self-Study: Curriculum Review and Writing Chapters 1 & 2 
3. Self-Study: Data Collection 
4. Self-Study: Writing Chapters 3 to 6 
5. Self-Study: Review/Revisions  
6. External Review 
7. Quality Assurance Plan Development (needs to be signed off by the Dean and Provost) 
8. Annual Follow-Up Reporting 

 
It should take approximately 16 months from beginning of Self-Study to the submission of the Quality 
Assurance Plan. The first Annual Follow-Up Report should be submitted one year after the approval of 
the Quality Assurance Plan. The Annual Follow-Up Reporting continues until a program can 
demonstrate, to the satisfaction of the SSCPR, substantial completion of the Quality Assurance Plan. 

 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Minor in Economics/Associate of Arts 
Degree in Economics 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 11, 2022                      2 
 

The chart below provides a visual representation of the proposed timeline including elapsed time and 
report submissions.  

Phases  
Months 

Oct 
22 

Jan 
23  

Feb 
23  

Mar 
23  

Apr 
23  

May 
23  

June
23 

July 
23 

Aug 
23 

Sep 
23 

Oct 
23 

Nov 
23 

Dec 
23 

Jan 
24 

Feb 
24 

Mar 
24 

Feb 
24 

Mar 
24 

Apr 
24 

May 
24 

1. Getting Started         
 

         
  

Self-Study Phases:         
 

         
  

2. Self-Study: Curriculum Review 
and Writing Chapters 1 & 2 

        
 

         
  

3. Self-Study: Data Collection         
 

         
  

4. Self-Study: Writing Chapters 3 
to 6 

                  
  

5. Self-Study Review/Revisions         
 

         
  

6. External Review         
 

         
  

7. Quality Assurance Plan 
Development  

        
 

           

One Year Later 

8. First Annual Follow-Up Report   
 Report submission months 
Note: External Review Report is submitted by the External Review Team, not by the Program Review Team.  
 

The tasks involved in each phase of the program review process are described on the following pages.  

 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Minor in Economics/Associate of Arts 
Degree in Economics 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 11, 2022                      3 
 

PHASE 1 Month/Year Tasks 
GETTING STARTED September 

2022 
• Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Chair information 

about program review before the initial planning meeting. 
October 11, 
2022 

• Manager, Quality Assurance and Chair of SSCPR meet with 
Program Review Team to outline the purpose and process for 
program review and expectations for reports and timing. 

October 11, 
2022 

• Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Review Team the 
guides and reporting templates. 

PHASE 2 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
CURRICULUM 
REVIEW & 
WRITING 
CHAPTERS 1 & 2 

January-March  
2023 

• Program Review Team conducts the curriculum review, which 
becomes part of the self-study report. 

• Support is available from Educational Consultants at the 
Teaching and Learning Commons. The Manager, Quality 
Assurance will provide an introduction.  

• Primary Author completes the first two chapters of the Self-
Study Report, although other members of the program review 
team may be involved in the writing.   

PHASE 3 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
DATA COLLECTION 

February 2023 • Manager, Quality Assurance sends Program Review Team the 
administrative data report needed for the Self-Study Report. 

• Program Review Team submits additional administrative data 
requests, if needed, to the Manager, Quality Assurance. 

February-
March 2023 

• Program Review Team provides program-level learning 
outcomes for Quality Assurance Team to include in surveys.  

• Program Review Team provides additional type of information, if 
any, they want to collect through surveys. 

• Quality Assurance Team customizes surveys for students, 
alumni, faculty, discipline/sector and seeks feedback from 
Program Review Team. 

• Program Review Team submits names and contact information 
of discipline/sector representatives and faculty members to be 
surveyed. 

March 2023 • Quality Assurance Team launches surveys for students. 
April 2023 • Quality Assurance Team launches surveys for alumni, faculty and 

discipline/sector representatives. 
May 2023 • Quality Assurance Team provides survey data reports. 

PHASE 4 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY: 
WRITING 
CHAPTERS 3 TO 6  

June-November 
2023 

• Primary Author writes chapters 3-6 of the Self-Study Report in 
consultation with other faculty members of the program.  

2nd week of 
November 

• Primary Author sends the completed Self-Study Report to Dean.  

December 10, 
2023 

• Primary Author completes revisions, if any, requested by the 
Dean and submits the report to SSCPR (5 weeks before the 
January meeting date). 

PHASE 5 Month/Year Tasks 
SELF-STUDY 
REVIEW/REVISIONS 

September2023 
 

• SSCPR members assigned to review Self-Study Report review the 
report and provide written feedback on necessary revisions. 



 
 

PROPOSED TIMELINE FOR PROGRAM REVIEW: Minor in Economics/Associate of Arts 
Degree in Economics 

 

Senate Standing Committee on Program Review                                    October 11, 2022                      4 
 

January 2024 
 

• Primary Author completes revisions to the Self-Study Report and 
submits it to SSCPR (one week before the meeting). 

January 2024  • SSCPR reviews Self-Study Report at the January 2024 meeting. 
PHASE 6 Month/Year Tasks 
EXTERNAL REVIEW 
SITE VISIT 

November 2023 • Program Review Team sends names of potential external 
reviewers. 

• SSCPR selects external reviewers.  
December 2023 • Program Review Team, with the help of Manager, Quality 

Assurance, begins planning external review. 
• Dean invites two external reviewers. 
• SSCPR Chair appoints KPU faculty member to the panel. 

February 2024 • External review site visit, with participation of Program faculty, 
students, alumni and PAC members, takes place. 

EXTERNAL REVIEW 
REPORT  

March 2024 • External reviewers submit External Review Report. 
March 2024 • SSCPR reviews External Review Report at the March 2023 

meeting. 
• Approved External Review Report is sent to Program Review 

Team and Dean. 
PHASE 7 Month/Year Tasks 
QUALITY 
ASSURANCE 
PLAN 
DEVELOPMENT 

March 2024 • Program Review Team receives the draft external review report 
and beings writing Quality Assurance Plan in consultation with 
the Dean. 

May 2024 • Program Review Team and Dean meets with the Provost to 
discuss the Quality Assurance Plan. 

May 2024 • Program Review Team submits Quality Assurance Plan to the 
SSCPR.  

June 2024 • SSCPR reviews Quality Assurance Plan at the June 2024 meeting. 
• Approved Quality Assurance Plan along with the Annual Follow-

Up template and guide are sent to the Program Review Team. 
PHASE 8  Month/Year Tasks 
ANNUAL  
FOLLOW-UP 
REPORTING 

June 2025 • Program Review Team submits first Annual Follow-Up Report. 
• SSCPR reviews Annual Follow-Up Report and decides whether 

the annual follow-up reporting should continue the following 
year. 

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 5.1 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Natasha Campbell, Andhra Goundrey 

 1 / 1 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: FOUNDATIONS IN DESIGN FIRST ANNUAL FOLLOW-UP 
REPORT 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Motion 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review 
accept the Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report as attached.  

THAT the program submits another annual follow-up report next year.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Attachments 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 

Date submitted 

February 1, 2023 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 1  

Date Self-Study Report approved by SSCPR: April 21, 2021 

Date of External Review Site Visit: June 29 & 30, 2021 

Date Quality Assurance Plan approved by SSCPR: Feb 16, 2022 

Date First Annual Follow-Up Report submitted:  Feb 1, 2023 

First Progress Report  
  
MONTH/YEAR WHEN THE FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN BEGAN: June 2021 

STRATEGY 1: Revise the program model. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 2: Address barriers to broaden access for incoming students. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course delivery to 
increase student enrolment. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on 
 (M/YY) 

Complete  
By (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Removal of portfolio requirement and re-assessment of other 
entrance requirements 

Chair Jun 2021 Sept 2021 

- Completed (Implemented Sept 2021)  
- The first phase of the removal of portfolio requirements includes reduced 

entrance requirements for Fall 2022 to include students answering 3 
guiding questions ‘on why design?’ in a video format rather than assessing 
their design skills entering the program 

- Outcome stronger application and substantial waitlist  
Explore open intake and the full elimination of entrance 
requirements Faculty Lead Jun 2021 

Sept 2024 
 

- Consultation with the Senate Office, Registrar, Associate Vice-President, 
Academic 

- June 16th, 2022, Meeting with David Burns and Amy Jeon Resulting in a 
request to consult with WSD Faculty for to impact of non-cohort, limited 
intake courses.  

- The ongoing conversation was held with the faculty council in 
consultation with Fashion and Technology (FASN) and Product Design 
(DEPD) as they are undergoing program review. Establishing alignment 

Develop course outlines to align with “Elective” 
requirements for KPU degree programs 

Faculty Lead + 
Faculty Jan 2022 

Explore transfer credits and laddering opportunities in 
WSD degree programs Faculty Lead Jan 2022 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 2  

with the degree programs for more significant program impact and 
support for WSD.  

- The benefit of moving FIND courses to non-cohort, limited intake allows 
for a larger funnel of students to pool into WSD and be able to take 
courses to discover design as an outcome and work toward developing 
strong portfolios to apply for degree programs.  

- Consideration offering certificate program (DESN Certificate) like General 
Business (BUSI) with core design courses and option for other courses 
such as MRKT 1199 and ENGL 1100. Further this allows students to 
complete required courses before degree entrance. Provides options for 
student to take courses in the summer semester.  

- The current intake shows a large pool of waitlist students at 20 + per year. 
The current over-enrollment option has allowed for increased seats to 25 
and all seats were filled for Sept 2022. 

- November 2022 formation of DESN sub-committee through the 
curriculum committee to address alignment of possible 
foundational for WSD specific courses in FIND Program to become DESN 
designation providing more options for students to remain within WSD 
and other non-design students at KPU 

Review current FIND Pathway courses to assess for 
suitability for possible additions/changes Faculty Lead + 

Faculty 
Jan 2022 Sept 2024  

- Upcoming consultation with Academic Career Preparation for English 
Upgrading and Admissions 

- Needs to be addressed once alignment of the other program are finalized 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 3  

STRATEGY 2: Curriculum alignment to support revised program model.  

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 1: Update all current courses for relevancy and currency. GOAL 2: Address barriers to broaden access for incoming students. GOAL 3: 
Strengthen Institutional connections to support students and Faculty. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete by  
(M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Revision of program competencies: Elements and principles of 
design, Portfolio skills, Digital Skills, decolonization, and 
relevancy with other WSD programs 

Faculty Lead + 
Faculty Jan 2022 June 2022 

- Completed 2022 for current FIND courses 
- Further consultation is required to align revision with the degree 

programs within WSD to establish an opportunity for open intake.  
Curriculum Mapping (Supported by Teaching and Learning) Faculty Lead+ 

Faculty Feb 2022 

Sept 2024 
 

- Completed curriculum mapping exercises April 2022  
- Identified Gap Analysis  
- Courses developed in FIND depend on understanding the WSD program 

learning outcomes to identify the gap analysis within FIND.  
- A draft of program learning outcomes has been established. 
- Further reviewing is required to ensure alignment for laddering and 

cross-listing in WSD Program.  
- DEPD and FASN are currently going through program revisions. These 

programs will provide FIND  laddering options.  
- Some FIND/DESN courses have been identified to be offered as possible 

foundational courses in DEPD and FASN to serve the larger student 
population in KPU the proposed move to a DESN designation with non-
cohort, limited intake model. Providing students with an opportunity to 
take design courses without applying to specific cohort models.  

Identify elective options Faculty Lead+ 
faculty 

Feb 2022 

Update course outlines 

Faculty Lead Mar 2022 

The WSD Curriculum Committee approves all course updates 
and new course outlines Faculty Lead + 

Chair 

May 
2022Sept 

2023 

June 
2022January 

2024 

- Completion dates dependent on the activities above  
SSCC approves all updates and new courses. 

Chair 
Sept 

2022Janua
ry 2024 

Oct 
2022February 

2024 
Senate approves all updates and new courses 

Chair 
Sept 

2022Febr
uary 2024 

Oct 
2022March 

2024 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 4  

STRATEGY 3: Promotion of the updated curriculum. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 3: Strengthen Institutional connections to support Students and Faculty. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course 
delivery to increase student enrolment.  

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Collaboration with FSO on program updates Chair/Faculty Oct 2022 Jan 2023 

- Completed Summer 2021 (Implemented Sept 2021) 
- Summer 2021 First intake revision update have been implemented with 

FSO 
- Updated all marketing material and KPU & WSD wide documentation 
- Ongoing consultation due to upcoming changing have been discussed for 

when implemented 
 

Collaboration with Academic Advisors on course availability Chair Oct 2022 Jan 2023 
Promote program updates with international student office- 
international study, ‘visiting’ and exchange 
students. 

 
Chair 

Oct 2022 Nov 2022 

Promote program updates with school districts to develop Dual-
Credit partnerships 

Chair/ Dean Oct 2022 Dec 2022 

Update the FIND KPU Website Chair/ Prog. 
Assistant 

Oct 2022 Nov 2022 

Marketing campaign to launch the new program updates: 
• Event (including a design activity for participants to 

engage in) 
• Video 
• Create a digital/printed promotional package to share 

with potential partnerships, academic advisors, and FSO 

 
 
 

Chair/ Faculty 

 
 

 
Oct 2022 

 
 

 
Jan 2023 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 5  

STRATEGY 4: Develop stronger support channels. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 3: Strengthen Institutional connections to support Students and Faculty. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course 
delivery to increase student enrolment. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete by 
(M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Strengthen relationships with the Counseling services 
All Faculty Mar 2022 Jan 2024 

- Postponed due to faculty time releases, scheduling, and leaves. Will be 
completed by stated date. Format will be through workshop or team 
meeting.  

Develop a student mentorship program with WSD students 

Chair Jan 2022 Sept 2022 

- Completed (Implemented Sept 2022) 
- Collaboration with other WSD program chairs 
- Peer Mentors (launched Sept 2022 for current academic year) working 

with current student cohort  
- Alumni support for students is implemented as ongoing within 

program for new applicants and current students.  
- Strong contact list of alumni who can be of support in program.  

Work with the Accommodation Office and Early Alert to understand 
students’ needs and channels of 
support All Faculty May 2022 Jan 2024 

- Accommodation Office training provided at Chair and Coordinator 
Meetings with Advisors.  

- Faculty have been updated about process at monthly meetings.  
- Encourage to provide specific workshops or team meetings 
- Delay due to faculty time releases, scheduling, and leaves. 

Library services- further develop lib guides and recourses for Anti-
Racism, Indigenization, 2sQTBIPOC All Faculty April 2022 Jan 2024 

- Indigenous designer in residence in progress awaiting HR  
- Require more feedback from stakeholders to address needs.  
- Sub. Committees in the WSD have been formed first meeting Jan 2023, 

FIND Faculty are part of the committee 
Faculty team building/ cross-disciplinary professional development 

• collaboration with Indigenous advisory 
• Attend workshops or conferences 
• Professional Development team building event(s) 

All Faculty Feb 2022 Jan 2023 

- Completed (Implemented 2023) 
- Ongoing participation with an Indigenous designer in residence.  
- Require more feedback from stakeholders to address needs.  
- Sub. Committees have been formed first meeting Jan 2023, FIND 

Faculty are part of the committee 
- Plan to montane and continue activities through the year 

 



      SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
        Reviewers’ Comments: Annual Follow-Up Report 
 

1 
 

  

PROGRAM UNDER REVIEW:  Foundations in Design 

Instructions for Reviewers 
Your assessment should ensure that progress on the Goals and Planned Actions is clearly articulated. If no progress has 
occurred on a Goal and/or Planned Action, please ensure that a clear rationale has been provided. 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT:  
Please provide a brief assessment of the Annual Follow-Up Report under review and an overall 
recommendation. 
Reviewer #1:  
It appears that many steps and actions required to satisfy the four chosen strategies (to address the identified 
issues with course relevancy and currency, barriers to student access, institutional connections, and student 
enrolment) have been already completed according to the schedule. The steps that require further 
consultation (to align program revisions with other degree programs) are under way. Considering the 
progress described in the first annual follow up report, it appears that the remaining steps will be completed 
before the scheduled deadlines.  
I recommend this report for approval by the SSCPR in its current form.  
 
Reviewer #2: Congratulations to the FIND team for the significant progress made this past year in moving 
forward on steps towards achieving its goals. The Report provides good detail on progress specifics, including 
completion of several steps and/or goals.  
 
Some clarifications and/or tightening up of wording would be welcome, as outlined in suggested actions and 
minor edits. 
 
Again, congratulations to the team on their accomplishments to date! 
 
Reviewer #3: There are good actions here but the section on who will lead them isn’t complete and there is 
much use of shorthand that will cause challenges later on. This isn’t a substantial challenge – they just need 
some details in these two areas to get this in shape. 
 
The Report (click on the box that corresponds to your recommendation):  
 

☒          Reviewer #1: Recommend for approval by the SSCPR as is 
☒          Reviewer #2: Recommend for approval by the SSCPR pending suggested actions (see below) 
☒          Reviewer #3: Recommend for rejection by the SSCPR 

 
 
MAJOR ISSUES AND SUGGESTED ACTIONS:  
Complete this section ONLY if you have identified the following major issues with the Annual Follow-Up: 

a) Progress to date is unclear. 
b) No clear rationale has been provided for why no progress has occurred. 

  



      SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
        Reviewers’ Comments: Annual Follow-Up Report 
 

2 
 

 
Issue (page #) Suggested Action Program’s Response 
Throughout the document there are 
placeholders in the place of leaders 
responsible. “Faculty” or “Faculty 
Lead + Faculty” are used in ways that 
don’t give the committee sufficient 
understanding of who is meant to do 
what.  

Provide either names or roles (like 
Chair, which you do) that have clear 
individual responsibility, rather than 
a category of persons that might not 
take direct responsibility. 

Faculty represented the 
faculty member provided with 
a time-release to lead 
initiatives in program review. 
The representative title has 
been replaced with Chair for 
clarity.  

There is use of shorthand a few 
times that will, in the record, make it 
hard for the committee and future 
employees (and government) to 
know exactly what we mean. 

Review the document for precision in 
this section on reported progress. 
Lines, as in the first step, like 
“outcome stronger application and 
substantial waitlist” are clear to me 
because I know what you are up to, 
but not to others and not to future 
persons looking at these documents. 

Items stated have been 
addressed and all shorthand 
has been supported with full 
description names.  

p.2, Strategy 1, Step 5 – unclear 
whether work on this step has been 
started 

Clarify ‘not started’ (if that’s the 
case). Include, as already listed, the 
next steps (‘upcoming 
consultation…’) and reason for ‘not 
started’ (‘needs to be addressed…’) 

Corrected 

p. 4, Strategy 3, Progress to Date – 
have indicated ‘Completed Summer 
2021’ however, start date was 
October 2022 

Clarify/change dates Corrected  

 
 
MINOR EDITS (Spelling, syntax, word choice and other mechanical issues). 
Please list corresponding page numbers. Minor edits are NOT discussed at the SSCPR meeting. Add or remove 
rows as needed. 

Minor Edits (page #) – Corrected  

p.1, Strategy 1, Step 1, 2nd bullet: change quote mark from ‘on why design?’ to ‘why design?’ 

p.1, Strategy 1, Step 1, last bullet: suggestion – ‘Outcome: stronger applications and substantial waitlist’ or 
‘Outcome has been stronger applications and substantial waitlist’ 

p.2, Strategy 1, Steps 2-4, last bullet/first sentence – lengthy sentence. Perhaps add commas or divide into 2 
sentences? 

p. 3, Strategy 2, Steps 2-4, last bullet/first sentence – lengthy/run-on sentence? Perhaps add commas or 
divide into 2 sentences? 

p.4, Strategy 3, Progress to Date, last bullet – needs clarification (eg. do you mean, “Ongoing consultation re: 
implementation of upcoming change”?) 

p.5, Strategy 4, Step 5, last bullet – ‘montane’ (sp?) 

 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 1  

Date Self-Study Report approved by SSCPR: April 21, 2021 

Date of External Review Site Visit: June 29 & 30, 2021 

Date Quality Assurance Plan approved by SSCPR: Feb 16, 2022 

Date First Annual Follow-Up Report submitted:  Feb 1, 2023 

First Progress Report  
  
MONTH/YEAR WHEN THE FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN BEGAN: June 2021 

STRATEGY 1: Revise the program model. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 2: Address barriers to broaden access for incoming students. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course delivery to 
increase student enrolment. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on 
 (M/YY) 

Complete  
By (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Removal of portfolio requirement and re-assessment of other 
entrance requirements 

Chair Jun 2021 Sept 2021 

- Completed (Implemented Sept 2021)  
- The first phase of the removal of portfolio requirements includes reduced 

entrance requirements for Fall 2022. The entrance requirements now ask 
students to answer 3 guiding questions around the statement ‘why design?’ in 
a video format rather than assessing their design skills when entering the 
program 

- Outcome: stronger applications and a substantial waitlist 
Explore open intake and the full elimination of entrance 
requirements Chair Jun 2021 

Sept 2024 
 

- Consultation with the Senate Office, Registrar, Associate Vice-President, Academic 
- June 16th, 2022, Meeting with David Burns and Amy Jeon resulting in a request to 

consult with Wilson School of Design Faculty regarding the formation of non-cohort, 
limited intake courses.  

- The faculty council has held the ongoing conversation in consultation with Fashion 
Design (FASN) and Product Design (DEPD) as they are undergoing program review. 
Establishing alignment with the degree programs provides significant program 
impact for the Foundations in Design Program and support for the Wilson School of 

Develop course outlines to align with “Elective” 
requirements for KPU degree programs 

Chair + 
Faculty Jan 2022 

Explore transfer credits and laddering opportunities in 
WSD degree programs Chair Jan 2022 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 2  

Design.   
- Moving the Foundation in Design program courses to non-cohort, limited 

intake allows for a larger funnel of students to pool into the Wilson School 
of Design. This allows students to take courses to discover what design is 
and work towards developing strong entrance requirements for the 
degree programs at Wilson School of Design. 

- There is the consideration of offering a certificate program (Design [DESN] 
Certificate) like the General Business (BUSI) Certificate that would be 
comprised of core design courses and options for students to take 
Introduction to Marketing (MRKT 1199) and Introduction to University 
Writing (ENGL 1100) which are general education courses required for 
many of the Wilson of Design Degree programs. This would allow 
students to complete the general required courses before degree 
entrance and create options for students to take courses in the summer 
semester to lighten their first-year course load.  

- The current intake shows a large pool of waitlisted students, at 20 + per 
year. The current over-enrollment option has allowed for increased seats 
to 25 and all seats were filled for Sept 2022. 

- The Design Course (DESN) sub-committee was formed in November 
2022 through the curriculum committee to address the alignment 
of possible foundational courses that can be supported in the Wilson 
School of Design.  These courses are currently offered through the 
Foundation in Design Program (FIND) and will become Design General 
Studies Courses (DESN) designation to provide more options for students 
to remain within the Wilson School of Design and offer an opportunity for 
non-design students. 

Review current FIND Pathway courses to assess for 
suitability for possible additions/changes Chair Jan 2022 Sept 2024  - Completion dates dependent on the activities above 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 3  

STRATEGY 2: Curriculum alignment to support revised program model.  

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 1: Update all current courses for relevancy and currency. GOAL 2: Address barriers to broaden access for incoming students. GOAL 3: 
Strengthen Institutional connections to support students and Faculty. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete by  
(M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Revision of program competencies: Elements and principles of 
design, Portfolio skills, Digital Skills, decolonization, and 
relevancy with other WSD programs 

Chair + 
Faculty Jan 2022 June 2022 

- Completed 2022 for current FIND courses 
- Further consultation is required to align revision with the degree 

programs within the Wilson School of Design to establish an 
opportunity for open intake.  

Curriculum Mapping (Supported by Teaching and Learning) Chair + 
Faculty Feb 2022 

Sept 2024 
 

- Completed curriculum mapping exercises April 2022  
- Identified Gap Analysis  
- Courses developed in the Foundation in Design program depend on the 

Design General Studies Course outcomes to identify the gaps within the 
Wilson School of Design.  

- A draft of the program learning outcomes has been established for the 
Design General Studies Courses (DESN).  

- Further review is required to ensure that there is alignment for 
laddering and cross-listing in the Wilson School of Design degree 
programs (Product Design [DEPD], Graphic Design [GDMA], Interior 
Design [IDSN] and Fashion Design [FASN]). 

- The Product Design Program (DEPD) and Fashion Design Program 
(FASN) are currently undergoing program revisions. These programs will 
provide the Foundation in Design program with laddering options.  

- There are courses within the Foundation in Design program that have 
been identified to be offered as foundational courses in Product Design 
(DEPD) and Fashion Design (FASN). The courses under consideration 
would serve the larger student population at Kwantlen. Further to this, 
the appeal to broaden the opportunity for design courses is to move 
from the Foundation in Design Courses to the Design General Studies 
(DESN) designation to support a non-cohort, limited intake model. Thus, 

Identify elective options Chair + 
faculty 

Feb 2022 

Update course outlines 

Chair + Faculty Mar 2022 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 4  

providing students at the University an opportunity to take design 
courses without applying to specific cohort model programs.  

The WSD Curriculum Committee approves all course updates 
and new course outlines Chair Sept 2023 January 2024 

- Completion dates dependent on the activities above  SSCC approves all updates and new courses. 
Chair 

January 
2024 February 2024 

Senate approves all updates and new courses 
Chair February 

2024 
March 2024 

STRATEGY 3: Promotion of the updated curriculum. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 3: Strengthen Institutional connections to support Students and Faculty. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course 
delivery to increase student enrolment.  

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Collaboration with FSO on program updates Chair/Faculty June 2022 Sept 
2022 

- Completed (Implemented Sept 2022) 
- Summer 2021 First intake revision update has been implemented with Futures 

Students Office (FSO) 
- All marketing material has been updated across the institution and the Wilson School 

of Design.  
- Ongoing consultation will take place due to the upcoming changes as stated in Strategy 

2.   
 

Collaboration with Academic Advisors on course availability Chair June 2022 Sept 
2022 

Promote program updates with international student office- 
international study, ‘visiting’ and exchange 
students. 

 
Chair 

June 2022 Sept 
2022 

Promote program updates with school districts to develop Dual-
Credit partnerships 

Chair/ Dean June 2022 Dec 2022 

Update the FIND KPU Website Chair/ Prog. 
Assistant 

June 2022 Sept 
2022 

Marketing campaign to launch the new program updates: 
• Event (including a design activity for participants to 

engage in) 
• Video 
• Create a digital/printed promotional package to share 

with potential partnerships, academic advisors, and FSO 

 
 
 

Chair/ Faculty 

 
 

 
 June 

20222 

 
 

 
Sept 
2022 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 5  

STRATEGY 4: Develop stronger support channels. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: GOAL 3: Strengthen Institutional connections to support Students and Faculty. GOAL 4: Explore additional means or partnerships of course 
delivery to increase student enrolment. 

Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete by 
(M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Strengthen relationships with the Counseling services 
All Faculty Mar 2022 Jan 2024 - Postponed due to faculty time releases, scheduling, and leaves. Will be completed 

by stated date. Format will be through workshop or team meeting.  
Develop a student mentorship program with WSD students 

Chair Jan 2022 Sept 2022 

- Completed (Implemented Sept 2022) 
- Collaboration with other Wilson School of Design program chairs 
- Peer Mentors were launched Sept 2022 for the current academic year and are 

working with the current student cohort  
- Alumni support for students is implemented and is ongoing within the program for 

new applicants and current students. The program implements alumni engagement 
within the classroom and info sessions to generate peer-to-peer dialogue about the 
program.  

- A strong contact list of alumni has been established   
Work with the Accommodation Office and Early Alert to understand 
students’ needs and channels of 
support 

All Faculty May 2022 Jan 2024 

- Accommodation Office training is provided at Chair and Coordinator meetings with 
Advisors.  

- Faculty have been updated about the process at monthly meetings.  
- The chair and faculty are encouraged to engage in specific workshops for 

professional development.  
- We have experienced a delay, due to faculty time releases, scheduling, and leaves. 

Library services- further develop lib guides and recourses for Anti-
Racism, Indigenization, 2sQTBIPOC 

All Faculty April 2022 Jan 2024 

- The Wilson School of Design has introduced an Indigenous designer in a 
residence that will commence for the 2023/2024 academic year.  

- The program chair is working with Indigenous Student Services to bring 
more awareness of Truth and Reconciliation to the Wilson School of 
Design.  

- The Program Chair is a member of the President’s Diversity and Equity 
Committee  

- The program chair and faculty members sit on the Wilson School of 
Design Equity Diversity Committee. 

- We require more feedback from stakeholders outside of the institution 



Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report                                Page 6  

to address needs.  
 

Faculty team building/ cross-disciplinary professional development 
• collaboration with Indigenous advisory 
• Attend workshops or conferences 
• Professional Development team building event(s) All Faculty Feb 2022 Jan 2023 

- Completed (Implemented 2023) 
- Ongoing participation with the Indigenous designer in residence for the 

Wilson School for Design 
- Require more feedback from stakeholders outside of the institution to 

address needs. 
- Sub. Committees have been formed first meeting Jan 2023, FIND Faculty 

are part of the committee 
- Plan to maintain and continue activities through the year.  

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 5.2 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Kim Bagshaw, Sharmen Lee 

 1 / 1 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: BACHELOR OF PSYCHIATRIC NURSING SECOND ANNUAL 
FOLLOW-UP REPORT 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Motion 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review 
accept the Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report as attached.  

THAT the program submits another annual follow-up report next year.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Attachments 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 

Date submitted 

February 2, 2023 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 1  

Date Self-Study Report approved by SSCPR: October 30, 2019 

Date of External Review Site Visit: February 3, 2020 

Date Quality Assurance Plan approved by SSCPR: November 25, 2020 

Date First Annual Follow-Up Report approved by SSCPR: January 19, 2022 

Date Second Annual Follow-Up Report submitted to SSCPR: Feb 1, 2023 

 Second Progress Report  
  

MONTH/YEAR WHEN THE FIVE-YEAR ACTION PLAN BEGAN: September 2020 

STRATEGY 1: Further establish or formulate a revised philosophy for the BPN program which will include revision of language and structural foundations to health, assessment, planning and 
interventions which anchor the entire program and integration of Psychiatric Nursing Practice Competencies. The philosophy will be rooted in Nursing Theory. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: The program requires further development of its program philosophy and the language embedded in the program materials (stating psychiatric 
nurses’ vs mental health practitioners). Embedded in the philosophy statement, a framework, clearly established must be articulated and threaded throughout the program (curriculum framework). 

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on 
 (M/YY) 

Complete  
By (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Review current philosophy and with faculty collaboration establish 
theoretical constructs which support health interventions for the client in 
meeting the BCCNM competencies. 

BPN 
Chair/Curr 
Chair All 
Faculty 

Nov 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dec 2023 Strategy to review has been partially met.  Implementation of new 
philosophy will be completed by January 2022.  Review of current philosophy 
began in the early part of 2021 and continues presently.  This strategy process 
is in the final stages of articulation.  The original timeline was not met due to 
challenges faced within the program in a response to the Covid 19 pandemic.  
The bulk of the course review and revision efforts will activate in the period of 
December 2021-February 2022 and the finalized philosophy of the program will 
guide the theoretical constructs health interventions for the clients served in 
meeting BCCNM competencies. 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 2  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on 
 (M/YY) 

Complete  
By (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Jan 10/23: Remains in progress. Challenges continued with changes to the 
program chair in April 2022 and changes to admission requirements (Fall 2022) 
and the revised BPN curriculum (Fall 2022) as well as the BCCNM request to 
indigenize the program courses. These changes have slowed this process and 
faculty will continue to look at the philosophy as it pertains to the new proposed 
BPN curriculum revisions for 2023. 

Ensure all language within course materials and program description 
state Psychiatric Nurse or Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing 

Curr. Chair Nov 2020 Apr 2021 Met.  Faculty have been aware to and are updating each course to ensure 
description and reference to the profession uses the specific language of 
Psychiatric Nurse or Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing. This includes course or 
program materials for the current BPN program version and the revised BPN 
program version.  As the new program version will be offered as early as 
September, 2022, and work currently underway, this strategy will be completed 
in all course review and revision. The BPN, through the process of program 
revision has an established checklist which serves both as a guide and audit tool 
to ensure QA strategies are achieved.  (See Appendix A) 

Embed revised philosophy statement and program foundation with 
theory, structure to health care approaches with clients into all course 
materials and program resources. Example will be Betty Neuman’s 
Holistic Health assessment recognizing a person composed of 5 
variables of health (psychological, developmental, physiological, 
socio-cultural and spiritual) in dynamic interaction with their 
environment. 

Curr. Chair Dec 2020 Dec 2023 Partially met.  Courses for the revised program remain under revision with this 
quality assurance strategy to be administered in each new course presentation 
and embedded into the theoretical and applied competencies of the program.  
The philosophical foundational elements for the BPN program have been a 
subject of great consideration and discussion among the BPN faculty.  
Considerations with the revision of the program philosophy relate to the 
historical foundations of the program which have rooted the program for many 
years and have contributed to the success of BPN students and will also 
include a contemporary philosophy which represents advancements in 
theoretical and philosophical structures for psychiatric nursing programs.  Each 
course presentation produced will have the revised philosophy statement 
embedded into the course with links to health care approaches and 
interventions with clients.  The next annual review presentation will include 
examples of this QA indicator.  As the focused work for all program revision, 
competency mapping in theory, clinical and lab skills will activate fully in 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 3  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on 
 (M/YY) 

Complete  
By (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

January of 2022, the Philosophical principles rooting the program foundation 
will be finalized in late December 2021 or early January 2022 before the bulk of 
the course revision initiates. 
Jan 10/23 – Remains in progress. Challenges stated in the revision of the 
philosophy affected the work on the foundational constructs of the BPN 
program and curriculum. BPN Chair and Curriculum Coordinator are continuing 
to work with the Deans office and Provost office to submit the curricular 
revisions to the program for a Sept 2023 start. With this in mind and the 
continued need for contemporary updates to the current philosophy and 
program this will be an ongoing process throughout 2023 and early 2024 with 
the completion before the next BCCNM program review. The BCCNM 
educational committee has been consulted regarding the required changes and 
is supporting these changes to improve the BPN program before the next 
external review. 

STRATEGY: 2, 3, 4: Ensuring students are well prepared for clinical in all semesters with clear course expectations, skills they are able to practice in clinical and ensure this is articulated to the clinical 
agency through clinical practice manuals for the relevant semester. This includes the assurance that faculty have been adequately prepared to enter clinical, have oriented to the unit(s) and visit the 
students according to the teaching mode outlined in the collective agreement. The orientation manual for the semester will include contact information and communication strategies between faculty 
and the agency. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: 2: Ensure the students are well and best prepared for entry to practice by focusing on key psychiatric nursing skillsets such as mental health 
assessments. 3: Ensure all faculty provide adequate and the intended support and supervision to students during clinical placement. This includes screening students and recommending appropriate 
clinical placements, orientation to the clinical practice areas and engagement with agency team members. 4: Prepare and provide updated manuals to the clinical practice units especially preceptor 
placements which outline the student’s knowledge/skill level for that placement, explore opportunities to engage with the clinical agencies on a more frequent basis and ensure evaluations and surveys 
are completed to enhance engagement and program development 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 4  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by  (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Increase communication between the BPN and clinical agency. This will 
be achieved initially by establishing a practice orientation for each 
clinical experience. Traditionally the BPN would only provide this for 
preceptorship. 

All faculty Dec 
2021 

Jan 2022 Met.  The BPN chair has engaged with all faculty attending the site for orientation 
prior to initiating clinical.  Faculty arrange a day of orientation at the site through the 
applicable manager or clinical nurse educator (dependent upon the site). Our NR1 
contracts accommodate compensation for this to occur.  This will be an ongoing 
requirement for clinical placements within the BPN, in semesters particularly for 3,4,5 
practicum.  Since the time of program review, BPN faculty have been orienting to the 
clinical practice units for each clinical rotation.  Although this was a practice carried 
out often previously, it was not being done with 100% consistency.  Since program 
review, it is the expectation that faculty will orient to the unit before completing any 
shifts with the students.  This will occur even in the case where faculty have 
consistently attended clinical practice placements year to year on the same unit.  This 
expectation allows faculty and the unit to become re-acquainted with the faculty 
member, expectations, schedules, review of policy or practices within the clinical 
agency. Further, as we progress through a program revision process, the BPN will 
establish a semester specific course guide which will be shared with the clinical 
agency.  In this course guide, a summary of the nature of the clinical practice goals 
and objectives will be shared, including all contact information for the assigned 
instructor.  This guide is particularly important for the later semesters when faculty 
are not on-site and includes semesters 6,7,8. 

A list of “critical skills” such as MSE, Trauma Informed Care, Suicide 
Risk Assessment and Prevention (not exhaustive), professionalism 
(from competencies) will be highlighted and purposely built into 
courses with a dedicated plan for theory, and practice by faculty 
along with carrying these elements over into additional courses for 
review. The BPN program will also be seeking resources for faculty 
specifically related to Online Teaching Skill Development to ensure 
all aspects of the program are delivered in an effective manner. 
Courses previously offered online which have been determined to 
require classroom instruction will be moved to the classroom once 
the global pandemic subsides. 

Chair, 
Curr.       
Chair 

Dec 
2020 

Dec 2023 Partially met and remains in progress.  Critical skills checklists have been embedded 
into competency checklist that are used in every clinical and psychiatric theory course 
where the essential skills are highlighted.  This information is contained in the course 
presentation.  The critical skills lists have been created with the intention of 
highlighting the skills focus for the course and offers a mechanism to visualize where 
competencies are addressed in learning and the process of scaffolding complex skills 
spanning multiple courses.  The checklist is not intended to be used as an evaluation 
tool as the elements are contained within the scope of the competency document, 
but to highlight the linkage of the skills focus with the specific theoretical, lab, or 
clinical practice rotation courses. In relation to resources specific to teaching online, 
BPN has worked with the Learning Commons to access resources and support at the 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 5  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by  (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

request of faculty. (https://www.kpu.ca/teaching-and-learning/teaching- resources). 
Additionally, BPN is integrating a standing item  within the BPN faculty meetings to 
identify needs for support and resources. The BPN will refer individual faculty to 
resources or provide guest speakers or in-services to faculty when these areas of 
resources and support are identified.  The quality improvement plan remains ongoing 
as we are still developing courses for the revised program. 
Jan 10/23 – Remains in progress. BPN administration and faculty continue to explore 
the evidence supporting critical skills in psychiatric nursing as the revised program 
curriculum in being designed. Currently both clinical and theoretical courses have 
been mapped to the BCCNM competencies of an entry-level psychiatric nurse, 
enhanced laboratory and communication skills practice have been integrated into 
current courses that addresses key clinical critical skills as well as practice of key skills 
that address communication strategies through live actor integration into student 
learning. BPN faculty continue to utilize the teaching and learning commons as a 
resource for students success. With the return of many services in 2023  the faculty 
have communicated the need for an increased understanding of online teaching 
strategies and  the BPN chair will build in guest speakers during faculty meetings to 
address the continued need for teaching skill in an online environment. 

Faculty will work with the agencies to participate in appropriate 
orientation. Staff who visit students in later semesters will document 
the day and time they visit students in clinical. In addition to the 
orientation manual, the expectation for all faculty will be to discuss the 
student’s status and agency needs on at least one occasion with the 
leadership team of the clinical practice unit. 

All faculty 
program 
chair 

Jan 
2020 

Beginning 
with each 
semester 
starting 
January 
2021 

Met and is an ongoing expectation.  As highlighted above the BPN has made it a 
requirement for faculty to attend agency orientation, including the completion of all 
online training modules prior to attending clinical.  This includes reviewing all 
agency training requirements on HSPNet prior to clinical and reporting completion of 
training as required including agency audits.  The training is of particular importance 
in semester’s 3,4,5 when faculty are working along with students on the clinical units.  
It is not possible for faculty to orient to each agency in the later semesters as they are 
supervising up to 20 students.  At a minimum, with faculty both on site, remote, or in 
an assignment with multiple placements, one formal meeting will be arranged with 
the agency clinical leadership to discuss expectations for faculty and student, learning 
needs, evaluation and communication among parties.  This meeting will be 
documented and submitted by faculty. 

https://www.kpu.ca/teaching-and-learning/teaching-


 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 6  

STRATEGY 5: Increasing the scope of stakeholder contributions directly to the BPN from the health care and mental health care sectors. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: This strategy supports goals 5: Increase the membership and scope of membership of the Integrated Program Advisory Committee for the BPN. 
This should include as many “sectors” as possible where the students access clinical practice placements and potential areas of employment. 6: Expand and maintain formal “stakeholder” connections 
and mechanisms which document the interactions for the purpose of relationship development to improve the quality and integrity of the program and to foster a reliable source of information for 
practice trends and ability to respond to those trends. This includes clinical practice agencies, health authority, nursing associations and government ministries. 

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Engage faculty and the dean’s office in discussion of whom and 
which agencies should be involved. This may include clinical 
agencies, members of associations, interest groups and 
government 

BPN Chair/ 
Curr Chair 
and Faculty 

Jan 
2021 

Dec 2021 Met. The BPN has, since program review, engaged in efforts and actions to improve 
its stakeholder contact and range of integration with health care and mental health 
care sectors. Some of the activities include appointment of KPU Student to the Board 
of Directors NNPBC, Membership of Chair and KPU BPN Alumni in the Canadian 
Federation of Mental Health Nurses, appointment of KPU Chair to board of directors 
for Aces, engagement with Fraser Health on Primary Care Placement Initiative 
including a tour of a Surrey Primary Care clinic and regular video conference with 
leaders responsible for activating the primary care clinic initiatives. In December of 
2021, the Dean FoH and BPN Chair will engage the Ministry of Health in discussion 
under the Pathway to Hope: A roadmap for making mental health and addictions care 
better for people in British Columbia – Report and Initiatives. Recruitment for 
membership to the IPAC committee has been ongoing, however; even though 
multiple discussions were had, agencies often are hesitant to join the IPAC committee 
due to ongoing pressures with managing Covid 19 protocols. 

Reach out to those whom are decidedly critical in being a member 
of IPAC 

 Jan 
2020 

Nov 2020 Met. Those determined critical to continue with IPAC have been a continuous support 
of the program.  As the needs of Efforts to build capacity and scope for IPAC will 
remain ongoing as the health care needs of the public evolve.   There has been a 
renewal of commitment with some of the IPAC members, however, citing challenging 
times in managing he Covid epidemic, some agencies with whom the IPAC committee 
has benefited with representation are wavering with commitment in the short term.  
The BPN continues to nurture these long-standing relationships and will happily 
receive their return to the IPAC committee when they feel they are able.  
Additionally, the chair has reached out to multiple agencies and sectors to request 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 7  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

participation in the IPAC committee.  Recently the invitation, including preliminary 
discussions, have gone to individuals working in the brain science, health and 
research sector and the secondary public school system. In the new year, the Dean, 
FoH and BPN Chair have secured a meeting with the Ministry of Mental Health and 
Addictions.  During this meeting which will focus on the Ministry goals for services 
within Mental Health and Additions, we will request and invite representatives of the 
Ministry to join our IPAC committee to better understand their priorities and 
mandate to align our programming offerings as appropriate. 

Create sub committee’s or working groups as necessary to ensure the 
program is responsive to community heath trends and needs. 

 Jan 
2020 

Nov 2023 This strategy has not yet been met.  The BPN program has undergone substantive 
changes and is now in a process of completing a significant program revision.  The 
program revision has been approved at Senate Standing Committee on Curriculum 
with a planned intake for May 2023 for the new version of the program.  In a parallel 
consideration, the health foundations pool of students has now been depleted and 
we are hopeful for a May 2022 intake with this being the last cohort to complete the 
current version of the program.  Should there not be enough students to run an 
intake, this intake will be deferred to an exceptional intake for September 2022.  
Further to this, through recommendations both within the KPU program review 
process, and the external program review, BPN has amended policy AC13 in order 
that only registered psychiatric nurses are teaching within the program (See program 
approval standards, BCCNM) See Appendix B) As such, we have been operating with 
4.5 full time faculty, one NR2 and committed contract faculty to root our program.  
Once through this period of flux, we intend to fully staff the BPN program which will 
allow consistent representation at key committee tables, including a subcommittee 
to ensure responsivity to community health trends.  Short of this, the BPN has and 
remains involved in key committees provincially and nationally allowing regular and 
relevant exposure to the health trends emerging within the health care system 
presently.  In the new year, the BPN will be engaging with the Ministry of Mental 
Health and Substance use for the purpose of discussing the needs of the population 
requiring support of our current program, potential for course content to be 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 8  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

addressed in addition to potentially looking at new programming (Mental Health and 
Substance Use Worker) with the support of our Mental Health and Substance use 
professional faculty. 
Jan 10/23 – In progress. With the proposed revised BPN curriculum, the BPN faculty 
and Chair have begun to meet with community stakeholders to ensure all areas of 
student education are focused on stakeholder and client needs. Some examples of this 
include re-engagement with forensic facilities to ensure students that remain 
interested in the field of nursing are able to build student supported learning before 
entering this practice setting. Meeting with Dan’s Legacy to explore student clinical 
placements for semester 6 and 7, to prepare students to work in areas with youth at 
risk for substance use and mental health issues. Engagement with iHeart with FHA for 
semester 6, 7, & 8 to explore placements dedicated to acute psychiatric nursing with 
individuals without housing and with mental health issues. For early 2023 we will be 
focusing on increased indigenous community mental health placements to further 
support the indigenization of our program as per our regulatory body. 

Review and implement a strategy (calendar schedule) for formal and 
informal information/data collection within the context of engaging 
with stakeholders. This will include regular scheduled meetings 
(IPAC), special consultation meetings, survey schedule for employers, 
alumni. Potential to establish new survey tools to elicit information 
useful for program design and integrity. 

BPN 
Chair/Curr 
Chair 
Office of 
Planning & 
Accountability 

Feb 
2020 

Dec 2022 
Dec 2023 

Partially met. Review and establishment of a strategy is underway; however, a formalized 
schedule has not been established. The BPN program has been working with OPA since 
program review to identify survey options for stakeholders to allow exposure to critical 
information relating to health care trends and the needs of the service providers in the 
community.  Additionally, BPN has positioned itself to engage with key stakeholders. 
Currently, BPN is engaged in conversations with community public schools about clinical 
placement opportunities, working in collaboration with Fraser Health as the first nursing 
group in the province to engage in clinical practice opportunities in primary care clinics, 
meeting directly with the Ministry of Mental Health and Addictions in the context of the 
Pathway to Hope report on Mental Health and Substance use. FoH with the BPN faculty 
being key contributors are working to respond to vulnerabilities in the service of British 
Columbians within mental health and substance use needs, along with best preparing 
mental health practitioners to best serve the needs of a population with comorbid health 
issues. This activity will take the form of expert consultation and the possibility of 
exploring revision to current programming or the establishment of new programs.  Any 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 9  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

changes to the current curriculum will be addressed at FOH Curriculum and Senate 
Accordingly.  In the process of program revision approved in July of 2021, the program is 
confident with the articulation of a comprehensive and contemporary program based on 
health trends occurring in our provincial communities.  Any activity of new programming 
will be done by the FoH and not have a direct impact upon the BPN unless there is the 
possibility of articulation into the current BPN program.    
Jan 10/23 –  Remains in progress. BPN program faculty remain actively engaged with 
the regulatory body,  key stakeholders and alumni to gather relevant data. Updates 
are required to our survey tools as we move to revise our curriculum and increase our 
program to 2 cohorts of 40 students per year in 2023. This will be done with the 
assistance of the OPA where needed and an in-house working group may need to be 
established to work on specific needs. The regulatory body has granted a year 
extension for program review to ensure some beginning data is captured for the new 
revisions and student headcount. 

STRATEGY 6: The BPN will develop an ongoing plan for curriculum review. Of note, the program will review and respond to the SSR and Quality Assurance Plan for the KPU review and BCCNM review 
with the current program whilst a parallel process will occur to prepare a formal program revision. Both processes will work toward addressing the recommendations outlined in the External Review 
Process and work toward creating an up-to date, highest quality Psychiatric Nursing program. 

GOAL(S) FROM THE QA PLAN THIS STRATEGY SUPPORTS: This strategy addresses Goals 7: The BPN will develop and implement an ongoing and clear plan for curriculum review and revision to keep 
curriculum current, consider resources necessary to effectively meet the plan and make recommendations as appropriate. The plan may also consider separate or unique admission criteria for the BPN 
specifically. Goal 8: Conduct a thorough curriculum review with competency mapping with each course presentation and pedagogy in BPN adjusted and supported for the purpose of best preparing 
students in all domains of learning within the program. (This QA Report recognizes this is the most significant portion of ERT and will formulate a majority of work and future activity). 

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Establish, document and enforce a clear plan for curriculum/ program 
review. 

Curr. Chair Dec 2020 Sept 2023 This work is partially met and remains ongoing with a particular focus of time and 
resources dedicated to the revised BPN program, its courses and integration of 
knowledge and skills in theory, lab and clinical practice contexts. (See appendix A) 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 10  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

Jan 10/23 – In progress. In 2022 changes have been made and approved by 
Senate to the BPN calendar, and admission requirements for the BPN program. 
This was done not only to make the admission process more streamlined for 
prospective students but also to allow for the discontinuation of the Health 
Foundations Certificate. Larger scale program curricular revisions are scheduled 
for review by Senate in April 2023 to address BCCNM program revision 
suggestions from the 2019 regulatory program review. 

With the plan for curriculum/program review, detail the nature of the 
work and the time commitment necessary for this work. The BPN 
team will develop a tracking document for regular curriculum review 
whereby the annual (minimum) and revisions out of industry need are 
detailed. The work will be distributed among faculty on accountable 
time and the program may petition for other resource support both 
within the department and by engaging other departments or 
resources. 

BPN Chair/ 
Curr. Chair 

Dec 2020 Dec 2021 Met. As above, this work is partially met and remains ongoing. (See Appendix A). 
This work will remain a priority for the BPN to prepare for a possible exceptional 
intake running the revised version of the program as early as September 2022.  
The document includes course revision and other critical program date 
commitments. (Appendix C outlines the scope of the program revision) 
Jan 10/23 – While the process remains the same, as previously stated, the 
timeline was pushed forward to be met in the fall of 2023. The program has 
required additional faculty release to ensure new submission dates are met in 
Spring of 2023. 

The BPN team will engage with Teaching and Learning for the purpose 
of supporting curriculum review and revision and faculty assignment 
of activities within accountable time provisions as the first actions to 
resource dedication of the work required. Following that, the BPN 
team may also consider approaching the dean’s office for more 
formalized support in the form of time release for curriculum revision. 
The rationale for these actions account for a majority of the program 
review deficits surround issues related to curriculum which is a 
resource intensive component. The integrity of the program requires 
such a level of support and without dedicated resources to improve 
the quality of the program, the reputation of the university and health 
of British Columbians may be compromised. The program may be 
expanding to create a Mental Health Care Worker Certificate which 

Chair/ 
Curr. Chair 
Dean’s 
Office 

Jan 2021 Jan 2022 This QA activity is met and has an ongoing commitment to remain engaged with 
Teaching and Learning associated with curriculum review and course revision.  
This is the BPN program’s top priority at the present time. Preceding this, a 
tremendous amount of work and time was expended on the program revision 
proposal itself. 
Through the remaining days of December 2021, the BPN is finalizing the 
assignment of faculty to the courses which require revision with the oversite of 
both the BPN Chair and BPN Curriculum Chair.  The BPN has been successful in 
securing dedicated time release for both the Mental Health and Substance Use 
Support worker concept paper (January to April 2022) and release for a 
Curriculum Chair from January to April 2022. During the concentrated time of 
course revision, the BPN Curriculum Chair will engage with Teaching and Learning 
to support the work of course revision in addition to the faculty contributions on 
the work.  With faculty numbers below our regular assignment allocation 



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 11  

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete 
by (M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

could provide the basis of one-time funding to achieve multiple 
program revision purposes. 

(maternity leave and recent resignation) the BPN will engage with the dean’s 
office to ensure there is adequate support on the priority work in preparing a 
quality revised version of the BPN program.  Reference Appendix A 

Consider a process of BPN admissions that addresses the unique 
qualities of candidates for the profession. Even beyond that which 
CASPer can offer. 

Chair/Curr. 
Chair 

Mar 
2021 

Jun 2022 
Sept 2023 

Partially met.  The recommendation is under consideration for screening 
candidates beyond the current GPA and Casper processes.  Selecting the best 
candidates for the 
program is an important consideration for the BPN program due to the 
responsibility and privilege in supporting the clients we serve in our community.  
BPN faculty agree a screening interview process would be the best addition to the 
process.  Attributes which would be examined would include self-awareness, 
genuine interest in patient care, empathy, understanding of personal and 
professional boundaries.  This will require further development and 
understanding of options which also allow such a process to be done efficiently 
and that minimizes the human resource implications of such a process. 
Jan 10/23 - Remains in progress. Due to very low student enrolment numbers, the 
BPN program has changed their admission requirements to encompass a broader 
prerequisite model that will allow more flexibility for students as they begin to 
consider the BPN program. This is in line with other programs in the FOH. 

 

  



 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report  
 

Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Program Second Annual Follow-Up Report                                                    Page 12  

STRATEGY 7: Address the curriculum recommendations from both SSR and ERT to improve the quality and experience of the BPN program in addition to creating a revised program proposal to meet the 
needs of contemporary mental health in the province of British Columbia. 

 
Step(s) Required to Achieve this Strategy 

Led  
by 

Start on   
 (M/YY) 

Complete by 
(M/YY) 

 
Progress to Date/Reasons for Lack of Progress 

The BPN is prepared to examine any and all resources available to achieve the work 
required to enhance the existing program and propose a revised program. That said, 
examining the use or realignment of resources, does not necessarily mean the 
dedicated resources currently assigned to curriculum work are sufficient. In good 
faith, the program will examine and be open 
to all possibilities. 

Chair/Curr 
Chair/ BPN 
Faculty Deans 
Office 

Feb 2021 Feb 2022 Met. The BPN has undertaken a comprehensive program 
review and has established and received approval for a 
revised program.  Such a review has encompassed a great 
deal of accountable time with the efforts of faculty 
committing to the process in addition to continuing to offer 
quality programming with operation of or current program.  
The program review has been actioned and is available for 
view in Appendix C of this submission.  Process has required 
consultation with our colleagues in the BSN program, 
deans’ office, BPN curriculum and faculty, Faculty Council, 
Ministry of Advanced Education, BCCNM and Senate 
Standing Committee on Curriculum.  The result of this 
work has resulted in an approved program revision to 
which a great deal of the strategic activities referred to in 
this document are addressed. 

 

 

 



      SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
       Reviewers’ Comments: Annual Follow-Up Report 
 

1 
 

  

PROGRAM UNDER REVIEW:  Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing  

Instructions for Reviewers 
Your assessment should ensure that progress on the Goals and Planned Actions is clearly articulated. If no progress has 
occurred on a Goal and/or Planned Action, please ensure that a clear rationale has been provided. 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT:  
 
Please provide a brief assessment of the Annual Follow-Up Report under review and an overall 
recommendation. 
 
Reviewer #1: This report does show significant progress toward achieving goals within the program. However, 
there are still many areas where goals have only been partially met. With all the curriculum changes, I am 
sure the faculty must be feeling that this is a moving target. I understand the impact of COVID on all areas of 
health care. This has added to the complexity. New dates have been given. Hopefully these new goals can be 
met. The faculty should return in a year’s time for follow-up.    
 
Reviewer #2: Both the progress made to date and the rationale behind unmet tasks have been presented 
clearly. 
 
The Report (click on the box that corresponds to your recommendation):  
 

☒          Reviewer #1 & #2: Recommend for approval by the SSCPR as is 
☐          Recommend for approval by the SSCPR pending suggested actions (see below) 
☐          Recommend for rejection by the SSCPR 

 
 
MAJOR ISSUES AND SUGGESTED ACTIONS:  
Complete this section ONLY if you have identified the following major issues with the Annual Follow-Up: 

a) Progress to date is unclear. 
b) No clear rationale has been provided for why no progress has occurred. 

Issue (page #) Suggested Action 
  

 
MINOR EDITS (Spelling, syntax, word choice and other mechanical issues). 
Please list corresponding page numbers. Minor edits are NOT discussed at the SSCPR meeting. Add or remove 
rows as needed. 

Minor Edits (page #) 

p. 7- “sub committee’s” should read “sub committees” 

In general, my suggestion is to use the full name the first time it appears before introducing its corresponding 
acronym. 

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 5.3 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Fergal Callaghan 

 1 / 1 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: PHYSICS FOR MODERN TECHNOLOGY EXTERNAL REVIEW 
REPORT 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Motion 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: THAT the Senate Standing Committee on Program Review 
accept the Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report as attached.  

THAT the program submits another annual follow-up report next year.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Attachments 

Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 

Date submitted 

February 1, 2023 



   
 

   
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Bachelor of Science, Major in Physics for Modern Technology 
External Review Report 

 
November 30 & December 1, 2022 

 
External Review Team Members 

 
Jeffrey McGuirk, PhD 

Simon Fraser University 
 

Matthew Gullen 
D-Wave 

 
Lindsay Norris 

Kwantlen Polytechnic University 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 2 
 

OVERALL ASSESSMENT OF THE SELF-STUDY REPORT 
 

Criteria: The Self-Study Report provides a data-supported analysis of the program’s strengths, weaknesses, 
opportunities and challenges. 
 
Standard for Assessing the Report:  
 Strengths and areas of improvement identified in the report are supported by data and external 

review findings. 
 Recommendations are supported by data, a clear rationale, and external review findings. 

 
The External Reviewers: 
☒Validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
☐Do not validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
 
Rationale for this Determination:  

• This report represents the findings of the External Review Team (ERT) charged with reviewing the 
Bachelor of Science in Physics for Modern Technology offered by the Physics Department at Kwantlen 
Polytechnic University. 

• Prior to the review, the ERT was provided with a self-study document produced by the Physics 
Department, supported by data in an appendix, as well as documents with further information on 
KPU, such as library resources and general education requirements. 

• The review ERT met with the Department Chair, Dean of the Faculty of Science and Horticulture, 
Physics faculty, current students, alumni, advisors, liaison librarians, and industry professionals on the 
Program Advisory Committee (PAC) in a blend of in-person and online meetings. 

• Overall, the ERT formed a very positive impression of the PMT program. The ERT validates the self-
study as detailed and accurate documentation of the strengths of the program as well as areas 
identified for improvement. 

• In particular, the strengths of the PMT program are as follows: 
o It is seemingly unique in North America as an applied physics degree that is intensely focused 

on hands-on experiential learning with the goal of placing graduates into careers in the 
technology sector (Chapter 2). 

o This focus on career training is strongly aligned with the mission of KPU as a polytechnic 
university. 

o PMT graduates have had an impressive 100% success rate in transitioning to the next step of 
their careers, including employment in optics, software, automation and other industries and 
also further training in post-graduate schooling in physics, engineering, and business (Chapter 
3). 

o The ERT found the faculty involved in the program to be strongly engaged in the success of 
the PMT program and of the students in it (Chapter 4). They are all trained physicists who 
have maintained currency in current experimental physics knowledge and skills. The methods 
of instruction – particularly the focus on experiential learning and “studio-style” combined 
lecture/lab courses – are modern and appropriate for the program goals. 

o Everyone the ERT met with was extremely supportive of the PMT program and appreciative of 
its goals, and these sentiments were especially strong in alumni and current students. 

 
 



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 3 
 

• The self-study report also identified areas for improvement, which the ERT agrees with. These areas 
include the following. 

o The key challenge for the PMT program is recruitment and retention of students. It is difficult 
to separate the effects of the COVID pandemic, particularly on a program as focused on 
experiential learning as the PMT program. However, this is a challenge for Physics programs 
at many universities, and it must be faced for the PMT program to thrive. This [self-study] 
report contains several recommendations (Chapter 3), but there is a clear need for dedicated 
recruiting and outreach support in conjunction with upper administrative levels within the 
Faculty of Science and Horticulture and KPU. There may be a need source additional funding 
and support for this department. 

o This ERT was also tasked with reviewing the PMT program curriculum. Though a well-
designed program, the ERT has several recommendations to offer (Chapter 2), particularly in 
the ancillary areas of programming, business, biology, and communication skills. Rather than 
a weakness, per se, the ERT considers their recommendations to be in line with standard 
ongoing modifications that all programs make to their curriculum over time. 

o Another key challenge for the PMT program relates to available space (Chapter 5).  The ERT 
notes that the recent loss of dedicated project space limits what projects and hands-on 
activities can be undertaken by students due to the need to flexibly share space. While space 
is always at a premium in universities, and programs must demonstrate a need for space 
through significant enrollments, the PMT program also cannot achieve its goals without 
dedicated project space. The ERT encourages finding such a dedicated space for the PMT 
program and the programs growth while continuing the continued flexible use of space by the 
department for lectures, labs, and projects. This would benefit recruitment, retention, and 
overall visibility of the Program, such as the other programs at KPU. 

 
 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 4 
 

REVIEWERS’ VALIDATION OF THE SELF-STUDY REPORT CHAPTERS 
CHAPTER 2: Curriculum Review 
 
Criteria: This chapter provides a clear profile of the program graduates, relevant program learning outcomes, 
and a curriculum mapping assessment that adequately identifies any gaps in the program’s curriculum. The 
assessment is supported by appropriate evidence and conclusions. 
 
Standard for Assessing this Chapter:  
 Strengths and areas of improvement identified in this chapter are supported by data and external 

review findings. 
 Recommendations in this chapter are supported by data, a clear rationale, and external review 

findings. 
 
The External Reviewers: 
☒Validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
☐Do not validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
 
Rationale for this Determination:  
 

1. Program learning outcomes are well-defined. Core theoretical physics knowledge (e.g. mechanics, 
electricity and magnetism, quantum mechanics), hands-on technical skills (test and measurement 
equipment, electronics, DAQ devices and microcontrollers), and specialized applications (e.g. sensors, 
optics, actuators) are all scaffolded throughout the curriculum. 

2. A key strength of the program curriculum is the project-based learning, which culminates in a 4th-year 
project. This capstone project gives students experience in planning, designing, and executing a 
hands-on physics project targeted at real-world applications, which is invaluable experience for 
technological careers. 

3. Work experience in industry and research labs provides “real-world” experience, networking, and 
helps students explore interests. 

4. Inclusion of Business courses in the curriculum is seen as an asset, especially by alumni and PAC 
members from industry. Currently the main constraint on Business courses to be counted towards the 
degree is that they may not be math-heavy courses for Business students, as PMT students already 
receive sufficient quantitative training.  (Curriculum Recommendation #1) 

5. Another key skill identified by the self-study report, PAC, and alumni is computer programming and 
the self-study provides several suitable recommendations. It was noted that many Physics students 
and faculty are largely self-taught and do not always follow best practices.  (Curriculum 
Recommendation #2 & Curriculum Recommendation #3) 

6. The ERT was asked to consider the biology component to the curriculum. Similar to business skills, a 
small number of courses (a single course even) is insufficient to train students in any depth in a 
subject area. However, the ERT, guided by the PAC, sees value in exposure. The fluency in the field of 
biology gained from an introductory survey course is helpful in preparing PMT graduates to work 
alongside biologists and health scientists in biotech and medical physics careers. Such cross-literacy is 
an extremely important skill in working with diverse teams.  It should be noted that the biology 
course component is required as part of the degree framework. 

 
 



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 5 
 

7. Students and PAC members alike saw significant value in the work term, but one challenge that was 
identified was the length of the work term: 4-month vs. 8-month vs. multiple 4-month terms. 
Students and alumni expressed a desire for more 4-month terms, to allow exploration of different 
fields and types of career paths. Some PAC members acknowledged that longer work terms become 
an immediate asset to companies, rather than functioning largely as training and recruitment 
activities. The ERT is sympathetic to both points-of-view, but also acknowledges the finite room in a 
program for different activities and the desire to keep completion times down. (Curriculum 
Recommendation #4) 

8. The quality of the connection to the Lower Mainland technology sector is another key strength of the 
Program. The self-study report identifies a few subject areas that are relevant to modern technology 
and may be suitable for inclusion in the program in some capacity. The PAC also provided constructive 
suggestions during consultation with the ERT. (Curriculum Recommendation #5) 

 
Additional recommendations, if any, identified by the ERT— include a rationale for each recommendation: 
 
Curriculum Recommendation #1: Constrain the choice of Business courses to areas identified by the PAC as 
being key – give students fluency in Business language and processes, an overview of how companies are 
structured and work, and an understanding of issues involved in making business decisions about the viability 
of products and services, and overall project management skills. A suggestion is to incorporate business skills 
into Physics project courses through a focus on project management in conjunction with the project-based 
learning already in the program to gain experience in planning around design-of-experiment, de-risking, 
strategic planning, etc. Such an approach could provide a unique value for physics graduates. 
 
Curriculum Recommendation #2: The ERT encourages the Department to see if a formal programming course 
can be added to the curriculum. Exposure to best practices in programming is valuable. At the very least 
students should be made aware of best practices and methods and tools for collaborative programming 
projects, version control, documentation, data handling, and other skills that are common in many tech jobs.  
 
Curriculum Recommendation #3: Beyond formal programming, the ERT recommends continued inclusion of 
computing throughout the PMT curriculum and encourages a top-down scaffolded approach to skills used in 
PMT courses, with a focus on modern scientific languages such as Python. 
 
Curriculum Recommendation #4: The ERT recommends that the department investigate whether additional 
flexibility can be added to the PMT program to allow multiple work terms, possibly in successive summer 
terms, or even to include longer terms within a year. As enrolment increases, the administrative workload of 
placing students in work terms will grow, particularly if more work terms are included in the program. The ERT 
encourages the Department to seek administrative support (such as university support for co-op experiences, 
or integration with the KPUs Co-operative Education infrastructure) as needed. 
 
Curriculum Recommendation #5: Incorporate technology being developed in the greater Vancouver area into 
the curriculum via course material, laboratory projects, industrial seminars, and tours. The program should 
continue to leverage and expand the scope of these industry connections to market itself internally and 
externally. 

 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 6 
 

CHAPTER 3: Program Relevance and Student Demand 
 
Criteria: This chapter adequately assesses program’s relevance, faculty qualifications and currency, 
connections to the discipline/sector, and student demand. The assessment is supported by appropriate 
evidence and conclusions. 
 
Standard for Assessing this Chapter:  
 Strengths and areas of improvement identified in this chapter are supported by data and external 

review findings. 
 Recommendations in this chapter are supported by data, a clear rationale, and external review 

findings. 
 
The External Reviewers: 
☒Validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
☐Do not validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
 

 
Rationale for this Determination:  

1. There seems to be a high demand for graduates of PMT, evinced by 100% job placement. The ERT 
meeting with the PAC and program alumni highlighted this fact. Alumni spoke positively about how 
the program prepared them for their chosen career paths; many of whom chose to continue working 
with industrial partners or labs that they partnered with for the work experience elements of the 
program. Feedback from employers was that the students that they had worked with were well-
prepared and provided many constructive suggestions for curriculum improvements as part of this 
Program Review. 

2. Students go on to tech careers, business careers, or further advanced degrees (MSc in physics or 
engineering, MBA) as evidenced by the ERT discussions with alumni and survey results in the self-
study appendices. 

3. The PMT Program is well aligned with KPU’s mission as a polytechnic university with a strong 
emphasis on vocational training. 

4. The key challenge identified for the Program is that of recruiting and retention (Program Demand 
Recommendations #1-4).  

o The ERT notes several positive recommendations in the self-study report regarding addressing 
known issues with diversity and inclusivity within physics and the under-representation of 
different communities and indigenization. and supports these recommendations.  These are 
well in-line with a modern approach to education.   

 



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 7 
 

Additional recommendations, if any, identified by the ERT— include a rationale for each recommendation: 
 
Program Demand Recommendation #1: The ERT encourages KPU to provide the PMT program with 
dedicated recruiting and outreach support that understands the program, target audience, and careers. One 
of the key roadblocks to increasing enrolment is getting information to prospective students, their teachers, 
and parents. Existing university resources and connections with prospective student populations can be 
leveraged to increase program visibility, but these resources must be coupled with deep knowledge of the 
outcomes of the Program and career opportunities for Program graduates. The ERT considers this one of the 
most important recommendations in this Review. 
 
Program Demand Recommendation #2: Use KPU resources (such as the marketing division or perhaps a 
journalism co-op student) to create promotional materials for the PMT program. In particular, the ERT 
suggests focusing on careers, as many students and parents do not know what sort of careers can be pursued 
with an applied physics degree. Students and alumni that the ERT met were enthusiastic and articulate about 
the PMT program and their careers: feature these students and alumni in these materials as inviting case 
studies. 
 
Program Demand Recommendation #3: Many students take introductory Physics courses at KPU intending 
to, e.g., obtain Engineering certificates and transfer to a different school. The PMT program shares many 
features with Engineering programs but offers significant flexibility on careers and training. Consider ways to 
attract/retain students from these paths.  This is an opportunity for additional cross-functional collaboration 
with PMT Program and FSH advising services. 
 
Program Demand Recommendation #4: Seek opportunities to leverage the experiential learning of the 
students to participate in high-profile postsecondary student competitions (Formula SAE, as a representative 
example) to raise the external profile of the Program.  Many competitions include funding and in-kind 
contributions from industry partnerships. 
 
 

 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 8 
 

CHAPTER 4: Effectiveness of Instructional Delivery 
 
Criteria: This chapter adequately examines the effectiveness of the instructional design and delivery of the 
program and student success. The assessment is supported by appropriate evidence and conclusions. 
 
Standard for Assessing this Chapter:  
 Strengths and areas of improvement identified in this chapter are supported by data and external 

review findings. 
 Recommendations in this chapter are supported by data, a clear rationale, and external review 

findings. 
 
The External Reviewers: 
☒ Validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
☐Do not validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
 

 
Rationale for this Determination:  

1. The faculty are all highly trained physicists. Faculty currency is maintained through engagement in 
literature, professional organizations, physics conferences, and research involvement. 

2. Experiential learning is at the forefront of the PMT program. Such active learning is well in-line with 
best educational practices. (Instructional Delivery Recommendation #1) 

3. Many courses are taught in a combined lab-lecture format, a so-called studio format, that promotes 
active learning and learning-by-inquiry. The ability to offer this type of learning is an advantage of the 
PMT program. 

4. The ERT observed faculty and instructional staff working one-on-one with students involved in 
complicated independent projects. Such mentoring is effective at demonstrating best practices in the 
hard-to-teach area of experimentation. 

5. The KPU Physics Departments uses a number of innovative practices and outreach efforts, such as the 
CloudLab for performing remote physics experiments and demonstrations. Several universities across 
Canada have also taken advantage of this resource offered. (Instructional Delivery Recommendation 
#2) 

 
 

Additional recommendations, if any, identified by the ERT—include a rationale for each recommendation: 
 
Instructional Delivery Recommendation #1: Though somewhat beyond the scope of review of the PMT 
program, the ERT learned of administrative scheduling difficulties in the multiple streams of introductory 
physics courses (life-science, engineering, etc.) combining into the same lab courses. The Physics Department 
should examine the administrative structure of its introductory courses, particularly the lab courses, and 
streamline them where possible. Also, beyond the scope of the review, some of the ERT encourage the 
Physics Department to consult recent literature on the purpose and use of introductory physics labs when 
considering their lab courses, as recent Physics Education studies have much to say about what sort of 
learning goals are most effective in lab environments. 
 
Instructional Delivery Recommendation #2: We encourage KPU to continue supporting the high visibility 
CloudLab program with dedicated infrastructure to continue offering it. We also recommend a stronger 
Physics Department branding of the CloudLab infrastructure to leverage it in recruiting efforts. The ERT team 
recommends that the PMT program continue to work with KPU to encourage the dedicated space allotment 
needed for the program for not only visibility but viability and growth. 

 



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 9 
 

CHAPTER 5: Resources, Services and Facilities 
 
Criteria: This chapter adequately assesses program’s resources, services, and facilities from both the student 
and faculty perspective. The assessment is supported by appropriate evidence and conclusions. 
 
Standard for Assessing this Chapter:  
 Strengths and areas of improvement identified in this chapter are supported by data and external 

review findings. 
 Recommendations in this chapter are supported by data, a clear rationale, and external review 

findings. 
 
The External Reviewers: 
☒Validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
☐Do not validate the Self-Study Report’s findings and recommendations 
 

 
Rationale for this Determination:  

1. Space: The ERT commends the use of space for the PMT program, scheduling lectures, labs, and 
project courses in the same space. However, this flexibility also limits the type and extent of projects 
that PMT students can participate in. This space usage is in part due to the recent loss of dedicated 
project space. (Facilities & Services Recommendation #1) 

2. Equipment: The PMT program is well-stocked with standard laboratory teaching and measurement 
equipment, and the PMT program has leveraged in-kind donations of research-grade scientific 
instruments from industrial partners. These specialized pieces of equipment give students excellent 
training and experience with modern scientific technology. (Facilities & Services Recommendation 
#2) 

3. Software: The report identifies software as an area of improvement that should be explored; 
however, student satisfaction in this area is quite high while faculty satisfaction is middling. (Facilities 
& Services Recommendation #3) 

4. Library Services: The Self-Study report acknowledges that the usage of library and advisory services 
are low among students; however, satisfaction is high among those that do use those services. From 
ERT discussions, it was clear that some initiatives (such as the full-semester borrowing of curated lab-
work kits for home use) were very successful and could be expanded and leveraged in the future. The 
self-study report also identifies some clear opportunities for increasing engagement with available 
Library services.  

5. Advising Services: The self-study report suggests that advising services are underutilized and that 
satisfaction is low among faculty while high among students and alumni. Several additional challenges 
were identified during ERT conversations including career trajectories and coursework requirements 
for further study or graduate school.  (Facilities & Services Recommendation #4) 

 
 



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 10 
 

Additional recommendations, if any, identified by the ERT—include a rationale for each recommendation: 
 
Facilities & Services Recommendation #1: Dedicated project space should be found for PMT students. The 
ERT recognizes that such space must be supported by higher enrollments in the Program; however, the 
program will have challenges growing from its current size without this space. The ERT team also recognizes 
that there are other small specialized programs at KPU that have dedicated project space, labs, and 
equipment. This has given these programs not only visibility, but room for growth both in enrollment and the 
program.  The ERT recommends that the PMT look and some of the best practices/strategies that other 
programs have used. 
 
Facilities & Services Recommendation #2: We encourage the PMT program to continue to seek industrial 
partnerships and for KPU to continue to support the acquisition, installation, and operation of this high-tech 
equipment. The engagement with the current PAC is well established, but further membership may be a place 
to explore for options of industry-based projects, support, student mentorship for capstone, and sponsorships 
for awards and competition entries for students and projects. 
 
Facilities & Services Recommendation #3: Though the ERT did not explore this in detail during meetings with 
faculty and students. The program should explore whether additional software resources are required to 
ensure that PLOs are being met and that software used in teaching and projects is relevant within industry. 
This is something that could be done in consultation with the PAC. 
 
Facilities & Services Recommendation #4: Though preparing students for graduate school is not necessarily 
the primary goal of the PMT program (Self-Study, page 7), it is clear there is a high-level of faculty support 
needed for students who choose to pursue that path. This includes a general understanding with other 
institutions regarding additional upper-level undergraduate course requirements prior to full admission to 
graduate programs at those schools. The PMT program should work to formalize agreements with institutions 
in conjunction with KPU leadership and FSH advising services to provide a concrete framework for pursuing 
graduate studies. The ERT recommends that the PMT continue to work with advising services and KPU 
leadership to streamline some of these pathways so that there is more support for students and faculty. 

 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 11 
 

CONCLUDING COMMENTS 
 

 
The members of this ERT greatly enjoyed the opportunity to learn more about the PMT program at KPU. 
Overall, we were impressed by the strength and quality of the program, the enthusiasm of the students and 
alumni, and the general positive and supportive atmosphere we experienced during every meeting.  
 
 
 

 
  



   
 

BSc, Major in Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 12 
 

APPENDIX 1: EXTERNAL REVIEW SITE VISIT AGENDA 
 

Kwantlen Polytechnic University 

Physics for Modern Technology 
External Review Hybrid (Online/In-Person) Site Visit Agenda 

 
November 30 & December 1, 2022 

Online Via Microsoft Teams 
In-Person in Room 3450B on KPU Richmond Campus 

 
Thanks to External Reviewers:  

Jeffrey McGuirk, SFU 
Lindsay Norris, KPU 

Matthew Gullen, D-Wave 

Day 1: November 30, 2022 

9:00 -  9:50  Introductions and First Meeting with Program Chair 

9:50 - 10:00  Break 

10:00 – 10:30   Tour of the Program’s Facilities 

10:30 - 10:40  Break 

10:40 - 11:30  Meet with University Services Panel (Library Services/ Faculty Advising)  

11:30 - 11:40  Break 

11:40 - 12:40  Meet with Faculty Members 

12:40 - 12:50  Break  

12:50 – 13:30 Meet with Dean/Associate Dean 

Day 2: December 1, 2022 

9:00 – 10:00  Meet with Alumni/Program Advisory ERT 

10:00 - 10:10  Break  

10:10 - 11:10  Meet with Students 

11:10 - 11:20         Break 

11:20 - 12:00         Final Meeting with Program Chair 

12:00 - 12:10 Break 

12:10 - 12:40  External Review Team meets to discuss findings and coordinate their review. 
*Note that listed times are in Pacific Standard Time.  

 



      SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
           Reviewers’ Comments: External Review Report 
 

1 
 

 REPORT: Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report 

 
OVERALL ASSESSMENT:  
Please provide a brief assessment of the External Review Report under review and an overall recommendation. 
 
Reviewer #1: The external review team has validated the self-study report findings. Noticed several additional 
recommendations added. The program will need to consider the feasibility of these recommendations 
depending on scope and access to resources.   
 
Reviewer #2: The External Review Report is very well written and validates the Self-Study Report. The ERR 
confirms the strengths of the program as evidenced by the SSR and site visit. The ERR also notes areas for 
improvement, in particular the need for dedicated recruiting, outreach, and marketing support, industry 
partnerships, additional funding, dedicated space, which the PMT team can advocate for.  
 
Reviewer #3: The ERT formed a positive impression of the Physics for Modern Technology programme, 
validating the self-study as detailed and accurate documentation of the strengths and areas identified for 
improvement. They make some additional recommendations in the overall assessment and each chapter in 
addition to validating the recommendations in the self-study report. 
 
In order to address the primary concern of student recruitment and retention, ERT emphasizes the significance 
for focused recruiting and outreach support in coordination with upper administrative levels within the Faculty 
of Science and Horticulture and KPU. The ERT also points out that the necessity to flexibly share space as a 
result of the recent loss of project space affects the variety of projects and practical training that students can 
engage in. Doing so would help with retention, recruitment, and the program's general visibility. 
 
In Chapter 2 Curriculum Review, the ERT notes that it sees value in exposure to biology, and the fluency in the 
field of biology gained from an introductory survey course is helpful in preparing PMT graduates to work 
alongside biologists and health scientists in biotech and medical physics careers. However, the length of the 
work term is a challenge, and the quality of the connection to the Lower Mainland technology sector is a key 
strength. 
The program would benefit, in my opinion, from the extra advice in Chapter 2 to incorporate business skills and 
technologies being produced in the greater Vancouver area into the curriculum. However, I am not sure 
Curriculum Recommendation #2 is out of scope or not: The ERT encourages the Department to see if a formal 
programming course can be added to the curriculum. 
The extra recommendations made by ERT in Chapter 3 Program Relevance and Student Demand are helpful, 
particularly the advice to use KPU resources to develop career-focused promotional materials because many 
students and parents are unaware of the range of occupations that may be pursued with an applied physics 
degree. In order to increase the program's external visibility, the ERT also recommends taking advantage of the 
students' first-hand experience by having them compete in well-known postsecondary student competitions. 
 
In Chapter 4: Effectiveness of Instructional Delivery and Chapter 5: Resources, Services, and Facilities, the ERT 
team offers additional, constructive recommendations. It is worthwhile for the Physics Department to consider 
reviewing the administrative structure of its introductory courses, streamlining them where possible, 
consulting recent literature on the goal and use of introductory physics labs, and encouraging KPU to keep 
supporting the high-profile CloudLab program with dedicated infrastructure. ERT strongly advises PMT to 
collaborate with advising services and KPU leadership to streamline some of these pathways so that there is 
more support for students and faculty, in addition to seeking dedicated project space, additional software 
resources, industrial partnerships, support, student mentorship, and sponsorships for awards and competition 
entries for students and projects. 

  



      SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
           Reviewers’ Comments: External Review Report 
 

2 
 

Congratulations to the Physics for Modern Technology programme on receiving such a strong endorsement 
from ERT. This External Review Report, as well as the Self-Study Report, are excellent starting points for 
developing the Quality Assurance Plan. 
 
 
The Report:  

☒     Reviewer #1, #2, and #3: Recommend for approval by the SSCPR as is 
☐     Recommend for approval by the SSCPR pending suggested actions (see below) 
☐     Recommend for rejection by the SSCPR 

 
MAJOR ISSUES AND SUGGESTED ACTIONS:  
While External Review Reports are not returned to the External Review Team for revisions, Reports may contain 
major issues which the SSCPR should address. These issues could include (but are not limited to): a) 
recommendations that go beyond the scope of program review; b) names or other identity information.  
 
Complete the table below ONLY if you have identified major issues in the Report. Identify actions the SSCPR 
should take to address these issues. Suggested actions could include (but are not limited to): a) redacting names 
or other identity information; b) providing an SSCPR Response that provides the External Review Team’s 
recommendations in context. Add or remove rows in the table below as needed. 
 

Issue Suggested Action for the SSCPR 
Page 5 – This is not an issue but a note to the 
program. There are several curriculum 
recommendations provided by the external review 
committee.  

If these are to be implemented, I would recommend 
the program to review and assess these ideas within 
the overall scope of the program learning outcomes. 

 
MINOR EDITS (Spelling, syntax, word choice and other mechanical issues). 
Please list corresponding page numbers. Minor edits are NOT discussed at the SSCPR meeting. Add or remove 
rows as needed. 

Minor Edits (page #) 

 

 



SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE ON PROGRAM REVIEW 
Agenda Number: 7.1 

Meeting Date: February 22, 2023 
Presenter(s): Melike Kinik-Dicleli 

 1 / 1 

 

 

AGENDA TITLE: MANAGER’S REPORT ON STATUS OF PROGRAM REVIEWS 

ACTION REQUESTED:  Information 

RECOMMENDED RESOLUTION: N/A 

 

COMMITTEE REPORT 

For Secretariat Use Only   

 

Context and Background  

There are 35 programs (or cluster of related programs) that are at various stages in the program review 
process.  

 
Phases Number of programs  
Self-Study  10 
External Review 4 
Quality Assurance Plan Development 1 
Annual Follow-Up Reporting 20 
Total 35 

 
Attachments 

Manager’s Report_Status of Program Reviews_Details for February 2023 SSCPR Meeting
 

Submitted by 

Melike Kinik-Dicleli, Manager of Quality Assurance, Office of Planning & Accountability 

Date submitted  

February 10, 2023 



Planning 
Began

Data Collection Concluded Report 
Approved

Date of Site 
Visit

Report 
Received 

QA Plan 
Approved

1st Report 
Approved

2nd Report 
Approved

ACP English Upgrading Dec-18
re-start: Sep-

21

Admin Data: Feb-19
Admin Data: April-22
Survey Data: Nov-22

Program received the survey reports on November 25, 
2022. The self-study report is due in May 2023. 

Arts Anthropology Sep-18 Admin Data: Feb-19
Survey Data: Feb-19

Apr-21 Oct 18/19, 
2021

Nov-21 Jun-22 First annual follow-up is due in June 2023. 

Arts Asian Studies Oct-22 Program received the draft surveys on January 4, 2023. 
Self-Study Report is due in July 2023.

Arts Criminology Jan-2019
re-start: 
Oct-22

Admin Data: Feb-19
Revised Admin Data: Feb-20

Survey Data: May-20

Self-Study Report is due in July 2023. 

Arts Creative Writing May-21 Admin Data: Nov-21
Survey Data: Nov-21

Sep-22 External review report is due on February 10, 2023.

Arts Education Assistant Sep-19 Admin Data: Oct-19
Survey Data: June-20

May-21 Nov 25/26, 
2021

Jan-22 Oct-22 First annual follow-up is due in October 2023. 

Arts Minor in Counselling Feb-18 Admin Data: April-18
Survey Data: April-18

Apr-19 31-Oct-21 Jan-20 Oct-20 Oct-21 Nov-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress one 
more time in November 2023. 

Arts English May-20 Admin Data: Jan-21
Survey Data: April-21

Nov-21 Feb 10/11, 
2022

Mar-22 Oct-22 First annual follow-up is due in October 2023. 

Arts Fine Arts Dec-23 Program received the information they need for the first 
two chapters of the SSR. Self-Study Report is due in 
September 2023. 

Arts History Dec-18 Admin Data: Feb-19
Survey Data: March-20

Feb-21 June 17/18, 
2021

Jul-21 Jan-22 Jan-23 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress one 
more time in January 2024. 

Arst Geography Feb-22 Admin Data: Dec-22
Survey Data: Dec-22

Program received the survey reports on December 8, 
2022. The self-study report is due in May 2023. 

Arts Journalism Dec-22 Program received the information they need for the first 
two chapters of the SSR. Self-Study Report is due in 
September 2023. 

Arts Language & Culture Dec-21 Admin Data: May-22
Survey Data: May-22

The external review site visit is on March 8 & 9, 2023. 

Arts NGOs and Nonprofit Studies Jan-23 Program received the information they need for the first 
two chapters of the SSR in February 2023.

Arts Philosophy Sep-17 Admin Data: Sep-18
Survey Data: Dec-17 (Discipline 

Survey: Mar-18)

Apr-19 Jul-19 Jul-19 Apr-21 May-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress one 
more time in May 2023. 

Arts Political Science Dec-19 Admin Data: Dec-19
Survey Data: June-20

Apr-22 Nov 7/9, 
2022

Dec-22 Quality Assurance Plan is due in June 2023. 

Arts Sociology Sep-15 Admin Data: Nov-17
Survey Data: May-16

Dec-17 Apr-18 May-18 Oct-18 Apr-20 May-21 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress a fourth 
time in June 2023. 

Progress Update
The table includes only the reviews in progress. 

Faculty Program Self-Study External Review Annual Follow-upQA Plan

Program Reviews in Progress As of: 2/10/2023 Page 1 of 3



Planning 
Began

Data Collection Concluded Report 
Approved

Date of Site 
Visit

Report 
Received 

QA Plan 
Approved

1st Report 
Approved

2nd Report 
Approved

Progress Update
The table includes only the reviews in progress. 

Faculty Program Self-Study External Review Annual Follow-upQA Plan

Business Accounting Nov-17 Admin Data: Jun-18
Survey Data: Jan-18

Sep-18 Jan-19 Feb-19 Feb-20 Feb-21 Mar-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress a third 
time in March 2023. 

Business Computer Science and 
Information Technology

Apr-19 Admin Data: May-19
Survey Data: Jan-20

Nov-20 Mar 1/2, 
2021

Mar-21 Oct-21 Program asked to submit the first annual follow-up report 
a third time in March 2023 to be discussed at April 2023 
SSCPR meeting.

Business Business Management Sep-15 Admin Data: Jun-18
Survey Data: Mar-18

Jun-18 Jul-18 Jul-18 Mar-20 Oct-21 Nov-23 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress one 
more time in November 2023. 

Business Economics Oct-22 Program received the information they need for the first 
two chapters of the SSR. Self-Study Report is due in July 
2023.

Business Technical Management and 
Services

Sep-22 Program received the information they need for the first 
two chapters of the SSR. Self-Study Report is due in July 
2023.

Design Fashion Design & 
Technology

Sep-20 Admin Data: Feb-21
Survey Data: Mar-21

Sep 28/29, 
2021

Oct-21 May-22 First Annual Follow-Up is due in May 2023. 

Design Foundation in Design 
Certificate

Oct-17
re-start: Oct-

19

Admin Data: Aug-17
Survey Data: Nov-17 (Student 

Data: Feb-18)
Revised Admin Data: Oct-19

Survey Data: Aug-20

Apr-21 June 29/30, 
2021

Jul-21 Jan-22 First Annual Follow-up Report is in.

Design Interior Design Sep-18 Admin Data: Nov-18
Admin Data: Sep-19
Survey Data: Nov-18

Jan-20 Jun-20 Aug-20 Feb-21 Mar-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress a second 
time in March 2023. 

Design Product Design Feb-19 Admin Data: Feb-19
Survey Data: Oct-19

Jun-20 Feb 24/25, 
2021

Apr-21 Nov-21 Nov-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress one 
more time in November 2023. 

Design Technical Apparel Design Jun-18 Admin Data: Dec-18
Admin Data: Oct-19
Survey Data: Dec-18

Jan-20 Sep-20 Oct-20 Jan-21 Jan-22 SSCPR asked program to report to report on their 
progress a second time in February 2023. 

Health Bachelor of Psychiatric 
Nursing

Sep-18 Admin Data: Feb-19
Survey Data: Feb-19

Oct-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Nov-20 Jan-22 Second Annual Follow-Up is in. 

Health Health Care Assistant 
Certificate

May-19 Admin Data: Jun-19
Survey Data: Sep-19

Jan-20 Dec 9/10, 
2020

Feb-21 Jun-21 Jun-22 SSCPR asked program to report on their progress a second 
time in June 2023. 

Health Health Unit Coordinator 
Certificate

Jan-18 Admin Data: Jun-18
Survey Data:

Discipline + Alumni: Mar-18
Student + Faculty: Aug-18

Dec-18 Jun-19 Jul-19 All intakes are suspended. The review is on hold until the 
future of  the program is determined.

Science Biology Oct-19 Admin Data: Nov-19
Revised Admin Data: Mar-21

Survey Data: Mar-21

Oct-21 Feb 24/25, 
2022

Apr-22 Oct-22 First annual follow-up report is due in October 2023. 

Science Brewing and Brewery 
Operations

Nov-21 Admin Data: May-22
Survey Data: May-22

Sep-22 External review site visit planning is on March 14 & 16, 
2023. 

Science Bachelor of Horticulture 
Science 

Jan-18 Admin Data: Jun-18
Survey Data: Apr/Jun-18 

Mar-19 Apr-19 May-19 Apr-21 Apr-22 BHS is not required to provide annual updates anymore. 
BHS degrees will be included in the Horticulture 
Technology program review. 

Program Reviews in Progress As of: 2/10/2023 Page 2 of 3



Planning 
Began

Data Collection Concluded Report 
Approved

Date of Site 
Visit

Report 
Received 

QA Plan 
Approved

1st Report 
Approved

2nd Report 
Approved

Progress Update
The table includes only the reviews in progress. 

Faculty Program Self-Study External Review Annual Follow-upQA Plan

Science Horticulture Technology 
Diploma

Nov-21 This review is expanded to include the BHS credentials.

Science Mathematics May-19 Admin Data: Jul-19
Survey Data: 

Faculty: Jul-19 
Alumni: Sep-19 

Discipline/Sector: Sep-19

Oct-20 Mar 10/11, 
2021

Apr-21 Feb-22 First Annual Follow-up Report is due in February 2023.

Science Physics for Modern 
Technology

May-21 Admin Data: Nov-21
survey data: Feb-22

Jun-22 Nov 30/Dec 
1, 22

Jan-23 External Review Report is in.

Science Sustainable Agriculture Oct-19 Admin Data: Nov-19
Revised Admin Data: Feb-21

Survey Data: 
Student: Aug-20

Faculty & Alumni: Jan-21
Discipline/sector: Feb-21

Sep-21 Mar 7/9, 
2022

Apr-22 Nov-22 First annual follow-up report is due in November 2023. 

Program Reviews in Progress As of: 2/10/2023 Page 3 of 3


	2 Agenda February 22 2023.pdf
	3 2023 01 25 SSCPR Minutes Draft - Reviewed.pdf
	4.1.0 SSCPR Cover Technical Management and Services Program Review Timeline.pdf
	4.1.1 Technical Management and Services Program Review Timeline-Final.pdf
	4.2.0 SSCPR Cover Economics Program Review Timeline.pdf
	4.2.1 Economics Program Review Timeline-Final.pdf
	5.1.0 SSCPR Cover Foundations in Design First Annual Follow-Up Report.pdf
	5.1.1 Foundations in Design First Annual Follow Up Report.pdf
	5.1.2 SSCPR Reviewers' Comments_Foundations in Design First Follow-up Report_Program's Response.pdf
	5.1.3 Foundations in Design First Annual Follow Up Report-Revised (1).pdf
	5.2.0 SSCPR Cover Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report (1).pdf
	5.2.1 Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report (1).pdf
	5.2.2 SSCPR Reviewers' Comments_Bachelor of Psychiatric Nursing Second Annual Follow-Up Report (1).pdf
	5.3.0 SSCPR Cover Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report (3).pdf
	5.3.1 Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report (1).pdf
	5.3.2 SSCPR Reviewers' Comments_Physics for Modern Technology External Review Report (1).pdf
	7.1.0 SSCPR Cover Manager's Report on Status of Program Reviews (2).pdf
	7.1.1 Manager's Report_Status of Program Reviews_Details for February 2023 SSCPR Meeting (1).pdf

